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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman
TIRE
B

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present you
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

For the year of 2008, the global economy has undergone drastic
changes and volatilities. The outbreak of the sub-prime mortgage
crisis in the United States has triggered worldwide financial
tsunami and credit crunch on the finance and banking industries
and ultimately, leading to a plunge in consumer confidence and
spending. Due to weakening market demand, the Group recorded
an annual turnover of HK$685,134,000, representing a decline of
9.0% as compared with that of last year. Profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company also dropped by 85.0% as
compared with that of the previous year. Nevertheless, our
magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting business continued to
sustain a strong growth and their total contribution to the Group’s
turnover increased from 26.7% in the year before to 44.1%,
which gradually meet our target for the total of magnesium and
aluminium alloys business accounting for 50% of our turnover.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FEHE @)

Putting shareholders’ interests and return as its top priority, the
Group pursues a long-term, sustainable and stable dividend policy.
The Board of Directors therefore recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HKO0.6 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2008, which represents 61.1% of our net profit for the
year.

In 2008, the Group was nominated by the Forbes China, an
influential business magazine, as one of the “2008 China Best
Small & Medium-Sized Enterprises” as well as by the Economic
Digest, a leading financial magazine in Hong Kong, as one of the
“2008 Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises” respectively. These
honours fully recognize the Group's unique position in the market
and its potential of sustainable growth.

Looking forward, the rapid rising market trend of the notebook
computers to substitute the desktop computers will favour the
notebook computer component business of the Group. Besides,
the Group will also place strong emphasis on design and
development of new products and production technologies in
order to expand its market coverage, enhance its production
efficiency and lower its production costs. Furthermore, the Group
will continue to explore and pursue suitable merger and
acquisition opportunities so as to enhance its competitiveness by
taking advantages of the benefits of resources and vertical
integration. While the undertaking of these market opportunities
may require new capital investment, we will maintain sound
financial disciplines and adopt a prudent approach.

To cope with the financial tsunami, the Group has implemented
more stringent cost control measures in order to improve
operational efficiency as well as to reduce overall operating and
administrative expenses. In view of this, the Group did not pay
any bonus to members of the Board as well as the staff during the
year under review.

The construction of the first phase of the industrial complex
comprising gross floor area of approximately 43,000 sg.m. in Daya
Bay, Huizhou, the PRC has been completed and the operation of
the new production facilities has gradually commenced in April
2009. The production capabilities of the Group have further been
expanded to cater for new needs of our major customers and
support the long-term business strategies of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group expects that it will take a considerable period of time
to improve the current economic conditions and restore the
market confidence, therefore the manufacturing industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC will face many new challenges in the coming
year. Given the difficult operating environment, our management
will stay focused on our key business drivers and execute more
stringent business measures to enable us to achieve our business
objectives in the face of new challenges. With the combination of
our people, research and development strength and leading
market position, our operating units are well positioned to
generate a quality revenue stream and sustain continuous growth
in profitability for the Group.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, financial institutions and suppliers for
their continuing support; our fellow board members for their
sense of direction; and our management and employees for their
dedicated contribution towards the continual progress of the
Group.

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T T

(A) FINANCIAL REVIEW (A) B 7% [@ &

During the year of 2008, due to a number of adverse factors
affecting the manufacturing industries, which include
appreciation of Renminbi against the US dollars, surge in the
costs of raw materials and energy, rise in labour costs
caused by the newly implemented Labour Contract Law in
the PRC and the outbreak of financial tsunami leading to a
plunge in consumer spending, the Group’s turnover for the
year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$685,134,000, which was approximately 9.0% lower
than that of the previous year. Gross profit recorded a
25.4% decrease to approximately HK$104,680,000 when
compared with last year and the gross profit margin was
approximately 15.3%.

In addition, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in Wing
Yu (Far East) Industries Company Limited (“Wing Yu"),
which is engaged in surface finishing treatment, at the
beginning of the year of 2008. Given that Wing Yu had
been wholly owned and controlled by the Group upon
completion of the acquisition, the production capacity of
Wing Yu and the Group’s capability in surface finishing
treatment will be expanded to fit in with the business
strategies of the Group. As Wing Yu was loss making before
the Group’s acquisition, the Group had to reorganize its
management structure and carry out operational
improvements to Wing Yu after its acquisition. In the second
half of 2008, Wing Yu's operating results had been improved
and started to break even. Since all the operating expenses
of Wing Yu had to be fully accounted for during the year
under review, the Group’s general and administrative
expenses were therefore increased by approximately 12.9%
over the previous year.

Due to a decrease in gross profit, an increase in general and
administrative expenses together with a one-off impairment
loss provision required to be made for an investment in
Magtech Company Limited (the Group held an equity
interest of 16.5% and this company had ceased its
production of magnesium alloy products during the year
under review), the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year dropped by 85.0% to approximately
HK$8,635,000 when compared with that of last year.
Without having to take into account the one-off impairment
loss provision and the inclusion of the attributable operating
loss as a result of the acquisition of 60% equity interest in
Wing Yu, amounting to HK$12,289,000, the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company would be
HK$20,924,000, which demonstrates that the operating
results of the Group's core business remained stable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN W RO @)

(B) BUSINESS REVIEW

8

For the year 2008, sales of zinc alloy die casting products
amounted to HK$382,797,000 (2007: HK$551,812,000)
representing 55.9% of the Group’s turnover. Sales from this
business segment decreased by 30.6% as compared with
that of last year. This was mainly due to the decrease in
demand for zinc alloy die casting products and the shift
from using zinc alloy to aluminium alloy for the manufacture
of some of the customers’ die casting products given the
persistent high price of zinc alloy in the first half of 2008. By
leveraging on its strength of producing the three major
non-ferrous die casting components (zinc, magnesium and
aluminium alloys), the Group actively proposed to its
customers on using magnesium alloy or aluminium alloy as a
substitution for zinc alloy to lower the purchasing cost for its
customers.

Magnesium alloy die casting business recorded a moderate
growth with turnover increased from HK$112,184,000 to
HK$128,489,000 or by approximately 14.5% as compared
with that of the previous year. The proportion of which as
represented in the Group’s turnover also increased from
approximately 14.9% in last year to 18.8%. The growth in
turnover was mainly attributable to an increase in the sale of
magnesium alloy notebook computer components. Seizing
the growing demand for magnesium alloy die casting
notebook computer components in the market, the Group
had actively expanded its customer base and production
capability so as to cater for the rapid development of
magnesium alloy die casting business.

Aluminium alloy die casting business achieved a substantial
growth of 95.9% or HK$88,753,000 to HK$173,848,000 as
compared with the year of 2007 mainly due to the growing
demand for products using aluminium alloy and a shift from
using zinc alloy to aluminium alloy in the production of die
casting components for some of the customers. Its
contribution to the Group’s turnover also increased from
approximately 11.8% in last year to 25.3%. By leveraging
on its strength of producing zinc, magnesium and aluminium
die casting components, the Group can have more flexibility
to cope with the price fluctuation of metal alloys, thus
helping customers to save its purchasing costs.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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In 2008, the Group was nominated by the Forbes China, an
influential business magazine, as one of the “2008 China
Best Small & Medium-Sized Enterprises” as well as by the
Economic Digest, a leading financial magazine in Hong
Kong, as one of the “2008 Hong Kong Outstanding
Enterprises” respectively. These honours fully recognize the
Group’s unique position in the market and its potential of
sustainable growth.
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The outbreak of the sub-prime mortgage crisis in the United
States has triggered worldwide financial tsunami and credit
crunch, causing volatility in financial markets and drastic
plunge in consumer spending and market demand. We
expect that it will take a considerable period of time to
improve current economic condition and restore market
confidence, therefore the manufacturing industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC will face many new challenges in the
coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W& 6@

10

To cope with the financial tsunami, the Group has
implemented more stringent cost control measures in
particular on negotiating material price reduction and
consolidating production facilities in order to improve
operational efficiency as well as to reduce overall operating
and administrative expenses. Conservative cash management
including closely monitoring of inventory level of raw
material and finished products and account receivables cycle
is also in place so as to maintain a healthy cash position for
the Group. Our cost control measures have proven to be
effective in the fourth quarter of the year 2008. Meanwhile,
some factors such as surging raw material prices and
appreciation of Renminbi, which have adversely affected the
Group’s results in the year 2008, have been stabilized
recently. In view of the above, we are confident that the
gross profit margin of the Group can be improved in the
coming year.

In future, the Group will focus its business direction on
notebook computers as there is a rising market trend that
desktop computers will be replaced by notebook computers
at a much faster pace. Benefiting from the development of
this new market trend, the Group will continue to undertake
research and development on the application of magnesium
alloy for notebook computers, devote more resources to
improve material application and provide various surface
finishing solutions. The Group will also actively search for
new customers in order to further enhance its turnover and
profitability.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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The Group will continuously focus on the research and
development of new products and production technologies
to open up new markets and lower its manufacturing cost.
During the year under review, the development of horizontal
dual controlled die casting machine, which is one of the
sponsored projects under the “Eleventh Five-year Plan” of
the PRC, was completed and successfully commissioned. This
machine can be used to produce magnesium alloy notebook
computer casings with thinner surface and better surface
finishing quality. The production costs can be saved by less
wastage of raw materials together with a higher yield rate.
In addition, this machine has also been used to produce
aluminium alloy die casting products for one of our major
customers in order to improve their surface finishing quality.

The Group will also carry out research and development on
the application of new metal alloys, metal forming and
surface treatment technologies as well as production
automation in order to enhance its competitive strengths.
Since polishing is a labour-intensive production process, the
Group will develop an automatic polishing machine jointly
with a machine supplier in order to reduce our labour costs.

The construction of the first phase of the industrial complex
in Daya Bay, Huizhou, the PRC comprising gross floor area of
approximately 43,000 sg.m. was commenced in April 2007
and has been completed in April 2009 and the operation of
this new production facility has now gradually commenced.
The production capabilities of the Group can be therefore
expanded in order to cater for the needs of our major
customers and support the long-term business strategies of
the Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN W RO @)

12

The development of plastic division is part of the Group’s
plan to transform itself from a metal die casting component
manufacturer into a vertically integrated one-stop service
provider, while part of its finished products are not only
made of metal parts but also with some plastics contents.
The Group believes that the continuing development of
plastic business will not only provide the momentum for the
Group's future growth, but also enable the Group to provide
a more comprehensive service to its customers and reduce
the costs of its customers in logistic and quality control
aspects that arise from their current practices to outsource
the production of metal and plastic components to different
suppliers. This will further strengthen the Group’s market
position to become a one-stop service provider for metal
and plastics components.

Due to the outbreak of the financial tsunami, it is expected
that the demand for raw materials will decrease drastically.
In view of this, the Group’s plan to establish a joint venture
company to develop rare earth magnesium alloy had been
temporarily put on hold as the profitability of this joint
venture company might be undermined. However, the
research and development of rare earth magnesium alloy will
continue. Rare earth magnesium alloy is formed by adding
rare earth elements into the magnesium alloy to strengthen
the original physical properties of the magnesium alloy.
Addition of appropriate rare earth elements can enhance
metal flow by 10% to 20% and the salt spray test has also
proved that the corrosion resistance of magnesium alloy can
be remarkably improved. The application of rare earth
magnesium alloy on notebook computer casings can also
enhance yield rate and in turn lower our production costs.

Despite the upheaval in the global economy, the
management believes that opportunities exist even in a crisis
and stronger players can gain further market shares under
the wave of industry consolidation. Backed by the Group’s
resilient business model, diversified customer base as well as
prudent financial management, the Group remains confident
in its prospects and its capabilities to overcome the
challenges ahead.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

ERBERERERLDF

UREBHEMFEHRAGSERTE
MEREHBUSEEES WU
WG HEREFT S ER —30 - 1t
TRARAEBZREEHKMET R
SeBEHIN BNERSRBE
B ARAR - NEBEMEEHEH
REBEHHTRASAREREMRN
MEBRS NI AFEEREFRE
HE2EORY  EEPEREKE
SNHEEBREBEME T TR HE
BAREEZYARLRBEEEKA -
HEBWASEERARESEBNER
MU —UEAREHEER  £—F
BEEAEMSMA -

HRERERMZESR  BHRMH
ZHERBARERD - BERU - &
SEXRI-—BAERRNERBKL
BAREZFAECERRBE  EAS
HEERR BB XRAREXIF
- HLIBESLTHAELR
BEGUEE BIESSRERES
BE2RRMBLITE - FEIAMRE
EeREZYEERE - MAEED
mIEAEBRBIUERADZTE
—t HEFBAACREBEAS M
Bt EERE EHLES
TERANEZABRINRLE  BE
PREEKmEEMEEERZAE
DN

BESHEEREREK  EEEM
EREITAERAEETREE -
EITEEANRET EOREN
EERAE-BBAMSMHE - BiE
BENEBREX - ZLENERPAE
EREBEENPBER  AEREHHE
RIRADFME LI A BE N 7 IR AR
EREKE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEN WO @)

(E) LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL (E) nBEEKBBEER

RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank and cash
balances of approximately HK$74,940,000 (31 December
2007: HK$166,039,000), most of which were either
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2008 were approximately HK$81,714,000 (31
December 2007: HK$94,207,000), comprising bank loans
and overdrafts of approximately HK$25,439,000 (31
December 2007: HK$68,555,000) repayable within one year
or on demand, term loans of HK$24,346,000 (31 December
2007: HK$14,526,000) with maturity of not more than four
years and obligations under finance leases of approximately
HK$31,929,000 (31 December 2007: HK$11,126,000). All of
these borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
to which the interest rates applied were primarily subject to
floating interest rate.

As at 31 December 2008, the gearing ratio (a ratio of the
sum of total interest-bearing borrowings and obligations
under finance leases divided by total equity) of the Group
was approximately 15.1% (31 December 2007: 18.1%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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(F)

As at 31 December 2008, the net current assets of the
Group were approximately HK$177,824,000 (31 December
2007: HK$251,227,000), which consisted of current assets
of approximately HK$313,056,000 (31 December 2007:
HK$435,432,000) and current liabilities of HK$135,232,000
(31 December 2007: HK$184,205,000), representing a
current ratio of approximately 2.3 (31 December 2007: 2.4).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US
dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. To mitigate the risks
due to fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, the
Group had used foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its foreign currency exposure during the year under
review.

(G) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

(H) CHARGE ON ASSETS

14

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by guarantees given by the following assets: (a) the
Group's bank deposits; (b) lessors’ title to the leased assets
under finance leases; and (c) a property situated in Hong
Kong owned by the Group.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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() HUMAN RESOURCES (N ABDEIR

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had approximately
2,200 full-time employees (31 December 2007: 2,300). The
Group attributes its success to the hard work and dedication
of its staff as a whole, therefore, they are deemed to be the
most valuable assets of the Group. In order to attract and
retain high caliber staff, the Group provides competitive
salary package, including retirement scheme, medical benefit
and bonus. The Group’s remuneration policy and structure is
determined based on market trends, the performance of
individual staff as well as the financial performance of the
Group. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme
as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff who have
made contribution to the Group.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
determined by reference to his duties and responsibilities
with the Company and are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company from time to
time.

The Group provides regular training courses for different
level of staff and holds various training programs together
with PRC institutes and external training bodies. Apart from
academic and technical training, the Group also organizes
different kinds of recreational activities, including New Year
gathering, various sport competitions and interest groups.
The aim is to promote interaction among staff, establish
harmonious team spirit and promote healthy lifestyle.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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(J) USE OF PROCEEDS

16

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 27 June 2007. The net proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$274,400,000 would be applied for the
purposes as set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 12
June 2007. As at 31 December 2008, approximately
HK$103,173,000 was utilized for the expansion of
production capacity, approximately HK$80,921,000 was
utilized for the first phase construction of a new industrial
complex in Daya Bay, Huizhou, the PRC, approximately
HK$11,071,000 was utilized for research and development
of production technologies, approximately HK$18,380,000
for repayment of bank borrowings and the remaining
balance of the net proceeds had been deposited with
licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEZNEREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Board, an
Executive Director of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee is responsible for the
formulation of the overall business strategies of the Group. He has
over 30 years of experience in the die casting industry. Mr. Lee
holds a master degree in engineering from the Yanshan University.
He was conferred an award of Honorary Fellowship by the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lee
was one of the founding members and was the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now become the Hong Kong
Diecasting and Foundry Association (“HKDFA")) in 1989. He was
elected as the first Chairman of HKDFA in 2008. Mr. Lee is also
the Vice-Director General of the Guangdong Mechanical
Engineering Association Die Casting Branch, the Vice President of
the Commerce Society of Pinghu, Shenzhen and General Chamber
of Commerce of Longgang District, Shenzhen, the PRC. Mr. Lee is
currently a member of Hunan Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Deputy Director of
Sub-committee 4 on Die Casting of National Technical Committee
54 on Foundry of Standardization Administration of China, the
Deputy Secretary General and member of Sub-committee 2 on
Metal Hot-forming Branch of National Technical Committee 186
on Foundry Machinery of Standardization Administration of China
and the Deputy Director of Die Casting Technical Committee,
Foundry Institution, Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society.

Dr. Keung Wing Ching, aged 57, is the Vice Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
the overall management, as well as supervision of the execution
of the overall business strategies of the Group. Dr. Keung
graduated from the National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in mechanical engineering. He obtained his master degree
and doctorate degree in mechanical engineering from the
University of Birmingham, the United Kingdom. Dr. Keung has
over 25 years of experience in the fields of metal forming,
mechanical processing and information technology. He is a
Chartered Engineer, a professional member of the Institute of
Materials, Minerals & Mining (UK) and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE).

Prior to joining the Group in 2005, he worked with the Hong
Kong Productivity Council for more than 25 years and his last
position was the Branch Director, Information Technology and
Services.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SEZNEREEAE @

Dr. Keung is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
HKDFA, a committee member of the Magnesium Alloy
Development Team for Taiwan, Mainland China and Hong Kong
(which was established jointly by China Non-ferrous Metals
Industrial Association, the Hong Kong Productivity Council and
Taiwan Metal Industry Research and Development Centre),
Chairman of the board of directors of Hong Kong Critical
Components Manufacturers Association, and committee member
of the Hong Kong Q Mark Council. Dr. Keung is currently an
advisor of the Guangzhou Science & Technology Association and a
member of Shandong Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Dr. Keung is also
currently an independent non-executive director of Fong's
Industries Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Joined the Group in 1988, Mr. Wong is now responsible for the
development of new products and production technologies. Mr.
Wong has over 20 years’ experience in die design and
manufacturing and the die casting industry. He is an Associate of
the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, aged 48, is an Executive Director,
Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant of the Company. He
is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s accounting and
financial affairs. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Chan held
a senior financial position with a listed company in Hong Kong for
over 8 years and has over 20 years’' experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in accounting and financial analysis from the University of
Newcastle Upon Tyne, the United Kingdom. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Zhao Jian, aged 40, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1996 and is now responsible for the
overall management of the Group’s production facilities in the
PRC. He has over 10 years of experience in the die casting
industry. Mr. Zhao holds a master degree in business
administration from the National University of Singapore. Prior to
joining the Group in 1996, he has worked in the manufacturing,
banking and catering industry.

18  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBS, JP, aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June
2007. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee as well
as the nomination committee of the Company Mr. Sun is an
associate of the Institute of Industrial Engineers of Ohio and has
over 28 years of experience in the household products
manufacturing industry. Mr. Sun was appointed the Justice of the
Peace in 2003 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
Hong Kong Government in 2006. Mr. Sun currently serves on the
board of directors as an independent non-executive director of
Ming Fai International Holdings Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok MH, JP, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June
2007. Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctorate degree in engineering, master
degrees in engineering and business administration respectively
and a bachelor degree in engineering. He is a Chartered
Mechanical Engineer and Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo was awarded with the “Young Industrial
Awards of Hong Kong” and the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Selection” in 1992, the “Medal of Honour” of the Hong Kong
Government in July 2001, and was appointed “Justice of the
Peace” of the Hong Kong Government in July 2004.

Ir Dr. Lo was appointed as the managing director of Surface
Mount Technology (Holdings) Limited in December 2006, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and has over 30 years of experience in the electronic and
power supply industry. He is an Adjunct Professor of the City
University of Hong Kong and a Guest Professor of the University
of Electronic Science and Technology Zhongshan College.

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John, aged 68, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 2 June
2007. He is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Yeow is a fellow member of both CPA Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries, and a member of both the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Yeow previously worked for Price Waterhouse & Co. in
Australia from 1969 to 1974 and KPMG in Hong Kong from 1974
to 1976 and was the Chief Accountant of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council from 1976 to 1987. In 1988, Mr. Yeow
joined the Hong Kong Productivity Council and became the
general manager in finance until his retirement in 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Sin Wing, aged 36, joined the Group in 2004 and is
the director of sales and marketing of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing activities of the
Group. Mr. Chan holds a master degree in industrial engineering
and industrial management and a bachelor degree in engineering
from the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked as a consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity Council for
over 9 years.

Mr. Yoshihisa Suzuki, aged 52, joined the Group in 2008 and is
the director of manufacturing of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing activities of the
Group. Mr. Suzuki holds a bachelor degree in mechanical
engineering from Chiba Institute of Technology, Japan. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked in the personal computer division of
a reputable global integrated information technology products
and business solutions provider for over 20 years.

Mr. Ng Mang Nga, aged 43, joined the Group in 2003 and is
the general manager of the Group’s subsidiary, Wing Yu (Far East)
Industries Company Limited. He is responsible for the overall
supervision of the operation of the Processing Factory in the PRC
and has over 15 years’ experience in the field of manufacturing.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 50, joined the Group in 1999. She is the
general manager of the Group’s subsidiary, Ka Shui Manufactory
Co., Limited and is responsible for its overall management. Ms.
Chan has over 18 years’ experience in sales and is the sister-in-law
of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat.

Mr. Li Yuen Wah, aged 51, joined the Group in 2004 and is the
manager in charge of information technology of the Group. Mr. Li
is responsible for the administration and operation of the
management information system of the Group. He is the younger
brother of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat.

Mr. Li Liang Jin, aged 42, joined the Group in 1992 and is the
sales engineering manager of the Group. Mr. Li holds a bachelor
degree in mechanical engineering from the Guang Xi University
and has over 15 years’ experience in the field of engineering.

20  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS" REPORT
ERRHE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture of zinc,
magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting components which
are mainly sold to customers engaging in the household products,
3C (communication, computer and consumer electronics) products
and automotive parts industries. The activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 42.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.6 cents per
share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 5 June 2009.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 45.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company'’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$226,112,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (conTINUED)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major customers
and suppliers attributable to the Group’s total sales and total
purchases were as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 31.7%
— five largest customers combined 64.0%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 26.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 76.8%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial
years ended 31 December 2008 and assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 are
set out on page 124.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are shown in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

22  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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BEESWME @

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities of the Company.

THE BOARD

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)
Dr. Keung Wing Ching
(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen
Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan
Mr. Zhao Jian

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBS, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok MH, JP
Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 17
to 19 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Keung Wing Ching, Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan
and Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting do not have any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report as set out on page 32 and
33, there was no contract of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the Listing
on Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long Positions in the Shares

EERITFRABRAE
NEVESL P PR
SRR EEEE
sy =)

RZZEENF+_A=+—H A2 A
BEENITBETHRAE  RAQRRKLEE
BEE(EXERBZSRBEIEN([F
MHEEG ) EXVE) 2 - AR
NhkEHF  HEREZSRBEEG
EXVEB BT RS BAEMEARRAREE
BHMAEXIMABERAA (B 2
EakBEE (REREESRKBEKDA
ZERXEERSI WA ABERZAM
BREER): ABREFTHFRPE K
%352 & 78 50 8% 11 7% {6k Pl B 52 2 #E
HRERE  UBREHRATES TR A
(TEWMRED) EWMRAETETES
RHGMBPETA([ZETA]) BONE
KRR MBIz EEREEWT

B zRR

Interest in controlled

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”)

TRBEE ([FEE]) company“)
A E Y

Benef|C|aI owner
Em#EAA

Dr. Keung Wing Ching Beneficial owner

EXEBL EmEAA

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner

HKBRE EmEAA

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan Beneficial owner

BRiE S % & EmEAA

Mr. Zhao lJian Beneficial owner

i S A EmEAA

607,200,000 69%
2,100,000? 0.24%
20,262,000? 2.30%
1,460,000 0.17%
18,480,000 2.10%
1,450,000 0.16%
7,029,000 0.80%
1,270,000? 0.14%
7,029,000 0.80%
1,390,000? 0.16%
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Notes:

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull Limited
("Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest
in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of
Precisefull in the Company.

2. Such interest in shares was held pursuant to options granted under the
pre-IPO share option scheme and share option scheme, details of which
are described in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
report as set out on pages 28 to 32.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code in the Listing Rules. In addition, save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2008 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2008, the following persons, other than the
directors or chief executives of the Company, who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares

Name Capacity
=R & %
Precisefull Beneficial owner
EmEE A
Note:
1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such, Mr.

Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the directors
and the chief executives of the Company were aware of any other
persons (other than the directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
the Company, or were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

RZEBEENFEF+_A=+—H ' THA
T (RRARBZEREZITHABRIMN R
KRR ABBERDF @ BEREE
SR EEGEXVEEE2 M3D BAM
ARRIBEBEZHEZIER  HEEIMH
EMAIRAIANBR ITEARABKRR
SR EZAMBERIBRAMMBES% KA L
ZHENERE  IMBAREBEEFLRBPE

16 15) 55 336 {5 78 0 8% 7 3% 16 P it & 52 B
ZHEFNER

R&hzRE
Approximate
Number of  percentage of interest
Shares in the Company
EARQAER
gl Q=] MOBDH
607,200,000 69%

Bt ot -

1. R EEA Precisefull 22 BITRA
At TEEWIE BESE Precisefull 9
EH R - WHEAILR BYESR Precisefull
BN ARARIMEL -

BREXFIEEZEN RAFER > AR
RIBEENETETBRABLAMEBTME
MALT(ARAEETLETEZTHRAER
INRARB 2D RBEROPES
BARBEFNMBAEGRAIEXVIFE2RE

3o HA BB EGHERE  KEBENKE
BEHMATRIABRTERQA KRR

RERREZ MR R AEES5% 3k A
s ZHFEAERBEEZLRYPEHRIE
336 16 78 R0 B B% IR Pt B ARG it 2 R s
HER o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BB IR ST &
1. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 1. BRAHREANBRESTS
On 1 June 2007, an aggregate of 59 pre-IPO share options RZEZTELFNA—H  &#59
of 22,000,000 shares were granted to selected persons as 778 B822,000,000 & 2 & XA
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group. HEEEREER TETAL
Details of the options granted under the pre-IPO share EAEEHAREBAIEL BR 28
option scheme during the year were as follows: BIskEE  -RERN - BREBXAR
BERABRENSED 2 BRER
BaT

Executive Directors

HTES

Mr. Lee 01/06/2007 0.81  27/06/2008- 1,320,000 - - 1,320,000

FhE 26/06/2011

Dr. Keung Wing Ching ~ 01/06/2007 0.81  27/06/2008- 880,000 - - 880,000

ZXKEBE 26/06/2011

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen  01/06/2007 0.81  27/06/2008- 880,000 - - 880,000

EXKBERE 26/06/2011

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, ~ 01/06/2007 0.81  27/06/2008- 880,000 - - 880,000
Alan 26/06/2011

RiESE4E

Mr. Zhao Jian 01/06/2007 0.81  27/06/2008- 880,000 - - 880,000

HELE 26/06/2011

Others

Het

Employees 01/06/2007 0.81  27/06/2008- 16,280,000 - 1,210,000 15,070,000

EE 26/06/2011
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All grantees of the pre-IPO share options may only exercise
the pre-IPO share options granted to them as follows:

A ERAFRESAEREZ AR
ANERRATAAITEERARHE
BB

From 27 June 2007 (the “Listing Date”) to the date immediately
before the first anniversary (the “First Anniversary”) of the
Listing Date

ZEEEFRAZT B EmHEHBADEZ LT ABRBE®
—AEER(—RBAFEE8 )M —8

From the First Anniversary to the date immediately before the second
anniversary (the “Second Anniversary”) of the Listing Date
—AFERELTRHPEFTHMNEAFER(IMEAFER])
# 5l — B

From the Second Anniversary to the date immediately before the third
anniversary (the “Third Anniversary”) of the Listing Date
WMEFERZ FMHBEW=AFEB(=ZAFEH])

0%

30%

60%

# AT — B

From the Third Anniversary to the date immediately before the

fourth anniversary of the Listing Date
ZEAFEEREFTHBE REAFE BN —A

Save as disclosed above, no further options were granted
under the pre-IPO share option scheme.

2. Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 2 June 2007. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to selected eligible persons for their contributions to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid until
1 June 2017 and each option will be granted at a
consideration for HK$10.

100%

BrEXWEESN  BERBAERA
MEEMBERESEE-FIRLME
o] B R A -

B IR RS

—EEREE (TBERETE ]
RZEZEL+FENABREARRQF
BRREBBZEERZRERM - B
BRiEAEIEEREEALTIREES
BEHAEBMIELERZ B R
HE BEREMEZS —EEREZ
E—t+FENA—BERE—BERES
LRBIOBETERL -
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30

The participants of the Share Option Scheme may include
directors, employees, consultants, professionals, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners, advisors and contractors of the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or
a subsidiary of such company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the aggregate of the shares at the time of listing. In
addition, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes involving the issue or grant of share
options by the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options already granted or to be granted to
each participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant should
not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further options above this
1% limit shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings, with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
45,898,000 shares, representing approximately 5.22% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of the offer of grant,
and must expire no later than 10 years from the effective
date of the Share Option Scheme. There is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which an option
must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms
of the Share Option Scheme.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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The subscription price for any share under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Board and will be
not less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the relevant option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.

On 13 March 2008, the Company granted 20,102,000 share
options to the Group’s employees under the Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.415 per share. A
summary of movements of share options of the Company
during the year is set out below:

BREABAETERONRBEESH
EEgRE HZEBIBERMU
TEReE :

(i) RELB#MKHzEE -

RZEEZNF=ZA+=H " ' ARQa
$Eﬂ‘éﬁﬁﬁﬁff§‘+§m$%@@%ﬁ
20,102,000 BE & #E © 1T E A
f%0.415 % 7t ° 75A$¢F|?q ¥iN
AERE ST

N

D)&ETEEEI

Executive Directors

YTES
Mr. Lee 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009-
FHE 12/03/2018

Dr. Keung Wing Ching  13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009-

ZKEBL 12/03/2018
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen  13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009-
HERBRAE 12/03/2018

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009-

Alan 12/03/2018
BESLE
Mr. Zhao Jian 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009-
ik e 12/03/2018
Others
Hit
Employees 13/03/2008 0.415  13/03/2009-
BB 12/03/2018

17,272,000

780,000 - - 780,000
580,000 - - 580,000
570,000 - - 570,000
390,000 - - 390,000
510,000 - - 510,000

- 3,312,000 13,960,000
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Notes:

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant was
HK$0.415.
3. The fair values of options granted during the year and the respective

accounting policy adopted are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of Mr. Lee Yuen Fat and Precisefull has provided a written
confirmation, which has been reviewed and confirmed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, confirming
that they have complied with the terms of a Deed of Non-
competition entered into between them and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 2 June 2007, the Group entered into a purchase agreement
with Chit Shun Machinery Limited (“Chit Shun”) for a term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December
2009, in relation to the purchase of certain die casting machines
and parts (together with the maintenance services). Chit Shun is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lee and an independent third party, in
equal share. Mr. Lee has nominated a director to the board of
Chit Shun. Besides, Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan (as a
representative of Mr. Lee) sits on the board of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chit Shun established in the PRC. Since Mr. Lee is a
director and controlling shareholder of Chit Shun, Chit Shun is a
connected person of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules). Accordingly, the transactions between the Group and Chit
Shun constitute continuing connected transactions (the “Chit
Shun Transactions”) of the Group. The Stock Exchange has
granted the Company a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for a period
of three financial years ending 31 December 2009.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Chit Shun Transactions
totalled approximately HK$6,708,000.

32  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

ERBERERERLDF

et

1. BRERESEHEAERLBHBREITES
s EBIE -

2. HEEEBRERLASZAINKTERO.415
BT

3. RFEAREMBREATFERERDRZE
SAHRE RN AR MR RMEESS -

BmEER

AR B S A KPrecisefull R B D 1RHEE
AR THARABIYIERTESHE
MEER HEREBEEZE_ZTN\F+=
A=+ BLSERAEBEETARAR AR
SN ZTARFRIEZIEK -

FEBEERS

RZZETELFAAZH AEEEFER
RREBERIA(TREAD REES
TESHEETEMH CERBERK) T
VEEHZ FHALTRAMEE_—T
ENFE+-_A=1T—B1Lt R#E=%F-
RARBEAMAINBERAR  BF
EER-—BRBUE=THEEEEZES
BE - FRLECRARAEZTSERRZES
A& RO RESEEE(FRENK
R)RBEARTERINZEN B QA
CEE FAFRERBAZEETRER
R BMEASARANEEAL(E
EREWAA) - W AEBEFER
ZRHBRASEZFEBRERS ([
MXH])  BIMEERTARARR
BABBEBETLETRAUFVVAEARA
ERBMEBLIRRILENRE  RBE
E_EEANF+A=+—HI=@H
BEE -

i

 E_EENEFE+_A=1+—HBILE
TRAKR S 2R B A B6,708,000

N

o

i
I



DIRECTORS' REPORT (conTiNuED)
SEETHE®

The auditor of the Company has performed certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group and reported to the Board that the Chit Shun
Transactions:

1. have received the approval from the Board;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

3.  have not exceeded the caps as disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 12 June 2007.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the Chit Shun Transactions and confirmed that they have
been entered into :

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparables to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available from other independent
parties; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARBAGEMRAEB 2 HBERERS
HOTETHERF  YCREESER
BARS :

1. DRBESFSHE
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AUDITOR

RSM Nelson Wheeler shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009

34  Ka ShuiInternational Holdings Limited = IzEIBRERER A A

% BED

TiInEE(FB) @M EHASERME
HEEBEEL MEEREZAH
REERBDBBTZRRBERE £

RZ -

EEEE®
TEE
FE

EE —_TTAFOAL+LR



M

ORPORA

NVAN
/H

—

sy
B

H
=

>
it
_%’UH

The board of directors (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance practices are essential for promoting investors’
confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and reviews its corporate governance practices on a
regular basis.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During 2008, the
Company is in compliance with all the code provisions of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the Group’s
overall business strategies, monitoring and evaluating its operating
and financial performance and reviewing the corporate
governance standard of the Company. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Company are
led by the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board has
also delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the implementation
of decisions of the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-
to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the production and operating
plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control
systems. The Board has the full support of the senior management
to discharge its responsibilities.

The Board comprises eight directors, including five executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors.
Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 17 to 19 of this annual
report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.
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Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed in
writing his independence from the Company in accordance with
the guidelines on director independence of the Listing Rules. On
this basis, the Company considers all such directors to be
independent.

All the independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
specific term of two years commencing from 2 June 2007 and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
are segregated and are not performed by the same person. Mr.
Lee Yuen Fat, the Chairman, is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board while Dr. Keung Wing Ching, the
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for the
overall management and supervision of the execution of the
overall business strategies of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in June 2007. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve
the financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group as well as to provide advice and comments to the Board.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John, Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff
BBS, JP and Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok MH, Jp and is chaired by Mr. Yeow
Hoe Ann John, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in
financial reporting and controls.

During 2008, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the financial statements of the Group with the external auditor
and discussed on the internal control matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of directors and the management of the Board
succession. The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr.
Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBS, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok MH, JP, Mr. Yeow Hoe
Ann John and Dr. Keung Wing Ching. Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBS, JP
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting to
review the structure, size and the composition of the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in June
2007. The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and determining the terms of remuneration packages,
the award of bonuses and other compensation payable to
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
consists of Mr. Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBS, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok MH, Jp,
Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann John and Dr. Keung Wing Ching. The
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff
BBS, JP, an independent non-executive director.

During 2008, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
and reviewed the remuneration and bonus of directors and senior
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

A summary of attendance of Board and Committee meetings in
2008 are detailed in the following table:

B

TEREIR-_ZFZTNFEFERZES
ERILFEERE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 4/4
FTRELEE

Dr. Keung Wing Ching 4/4
ZXKIEE L

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 4/4
moKEEE

Mr. Chan Tat Cheong, Alan 4/4
bREE L&

Mr. Zhao Jian 4/4
it e 5 A&

Independent Non-Executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Sun Kai Lit, Cliff BBS, JP 4/4
RRURUSE 8BS, A T4+

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok MH, JP 4/4
EEBRBIMH AT@E+

Mr. Yeow Hoe Ann, John 4/4
ok AN % %

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, all directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2008. The statement of the external auditor of the
Company in relation to their reporting responsibility on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 40 and 41.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group in order to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investments. There
is currently an internal audit department within the Group. Its
duties are to review the systems of internal controls covering all
relevant financial, operational and compliance control functions
within an established framework. Reports prepared by this
department are submitted to the Audit Committee of the
Company for review to ensure that an effective and adequate
internal control system has been in place.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

Total auditor’s remuneration in relation to statutory audit work
and non-audit services of the Group is set out as follows:

%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁz

EERRAEUREIEAQRFANHLE=ZFZAN
F+_AZ+ - BULHEFEEYBEHRRZE
e ARBZIEZBMBEHAER
MHHRzBERETCMBEL 2R &
RBAORMBZBIZHMBRER -

i #B s 2

EFELRARERASEREZNAR
MABEZERS UWREXEEEER
BRZRE -BEEEE - RN EZED
M ERESRSAMERRG 281
ERVAORBANMARBYLE - ZE&
MRWEROIE R REE - ZAPIAREZ
BEGREARAZERZBEREN
NHEREREREAZABEZERZRED
7 o

%R 2 B &

AEENTEREIEERRFEELRS
MBI E DT

(In HK$°000) (AEBEEFrREN) 2007

Statutory audit ETEEZ 700

Non-audit services' IEEZ R 116

Total @ 816
Note 1: Brat 1 -

Non-audit services mainly include interim review and tax advisory service.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR 2 2GR

RSM Nelson Wheeler
FIGEE(EB)SETMESEM

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
42 to 123, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

40 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 April 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

Note
Bt &
Turnover EER 6
Cost of sales $H & K AN
Gross profit E R
Other income H b I A 7
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHRAX
General and administrative expenses  — & & 7 I B &%
Profit from operations FE =il
Finance costs b & B AN 8
Share of loss of an associate DIEEE REEE 16
Share of loss of a jointly o h FEEE G E 8
controlled entity 18 17
Impairment loss on AP EemEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets B 1B & 18 18
Profit before tax RR Bt AU & F
Income tax expense FrBHAx 9
Profit for the year F R F 10
Attributable to: LTFALTEMES :
Equity holders of the Company RARIERZFER A
Minority interests LEEEFEA
Dividends =t 12
Interim H A
Proposed final EEANH
Earnings per share BREF 13
Basic LN
Diluted s
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2008
—EENE
HK$'000
F# T
685,134
(580,454)

104,680

4,710
(9.654)
(75,165)

24,571
(2,449)

(1,292)

(6,303)
14,527

(5.892)
8,635

8,635

8,635

5,280
5,280

HK Cents
B

0.98
N/ATiE A

2007
—ETLHF
HK$'000
FEL
752,749
(612,517)

140,232
11,205
(7,440)

(66,596)

77,401
(5,995)
(1,401)

(281)

(2,000)

67,724
(10,179)

57,545

57,492
53

57,545

10,560
7,920

18,480

HK Cents
JEAL

7.42
N/A i A



CONSOLlDATED BALANCE SHEET
I\‘/T\ éF T 2%

At 31 December 2008
RZZZNF+=—A=+—H

2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
K &F FET FHE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M EE - RN ERE 14 323,326 224,580
Prepaid land lease payments B LS 15 35,625 33,893
Club membership e E 718 718
Investment in an associate HEE ANAMIEE 16 - 1,115
Investment in a jointly controlled entity ¥ 3 @] 5 4| & 2 19 & & 17 7,470 8,259
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 18 - 6,303
Deposits paid for acquisition of TENEEYE -
property, plant and equipment #2s KRB &
and prepaid land lease payments ENTtHESzES 19 30,090 8,096
397,229 282,964
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 125,116 118,344
Trade receivables 2 5 W IE 21 97,445 115,491
Financial assets at fair value ZATEGF AERE
through profit or loss K & Eﬂ & E 22 3,277
Prepayments, deposits and other T8 15 3% ?;z & R EHAM
receivables fE Hﬁz 23 10,155 11,613
Due from an associate JE UK Bt ’D\ Al K IE 24 = 14,335
Current tax assets B EA %1 18 & = 1,118
Pledged bank deposits B IFRITER 25 4,282 6,333
Bank and cash balances R1T R &% 25 74,940 166,039
313,056 435,432
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables 2 5 R IE 26 53,306 61,381
Deposits received Bz 2,578 3,054
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNKRERESER 27,134 27,555
Due to a related company JE 15T Bl & N Bl 518 27 792 806
Financial liabilities at fair value ERAFEEFABRZE
through profit or loss WeREE 22 3,047 =
Due to an associate FE < Bt 55 N B TR 24 = 4,246
Short term borrowings HEE R 28 25,439 68,555
Current portion R AIfE A
of long term borrowings B EA &6 75 29 9,263 5,511
Current portion of obligations b & A A ER
under finance leases Bl EA 28 5 30 13,207 6,641
Current tax liabilities BVEAFi B & & 466 6,456
135,232 184,205
Net current assets mEBEEFE 177,824 251,227
Total assets less current liabilities BEE#BRABAERG 575,053 534,191
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
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At 31 December 2008
RZZEZNF+=ZA=+—H

Note
Bt &
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Long term borrowings RAEIfE 29
Obligations under finance leases b & A 30
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEEE 32
NET ASSETS EEFE
Capital and reserves EXKEE
Share capital g A< 33
Reserves & % i
TOTAL EQUITY EREE

Lee Yuen Fat

TR
Director

EF
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2008
—2ENF
HK$°000
THET

15,083
18,722
1,608

35,413
539,640

88,000
451,640

539,640

Keung Wing Ching

EXKIE

Director

EF

2007
—ETEF
HK$'000
FET

9,015
4,485
1,128

14,628
519,563

88,000
431,563

519,563



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—A= N\ /

GARNEDS

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-FEN\Ft-A=+-ALFRE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ENGE $:-352-PN: 13§+
Foreign
currency Share
Share Share Retained  Capital Merger translation  option Statutory Minority Total
capital premium earnings reserve  reserve reserve  reserve reserve Total interests  equity
LBRE
BRE 5EA
BREx RBEE REERFN E4HEE AHRE ELRRK W EERE @Azt Bz REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TEAr FErT TEn TExL FErT TAxT TEx FErL TET FEx
At 1 January 2007 ZZT+5-fF—H 30 - 204,731 3,084 (10) 2,826 - 2,810 213,471 4899 218,370
Exchange difference on translation B E G EHE FE L
of foreign operations MEXZR = - - - - 6,243 - - 6,243 - 6,243
Share issue expenses BHBETHT - (20,411) = - - - - - (20,411) - (20,411)
Net (expense)/income recognised ~ E 15 7 18 2 B 2 )
directly in equity (XH) /WA RE - (20,411) = - - 6,243 - - (14,168) - (14,168
Profit for the year FREF - - 57,49 - - - - - 57,49 53 57,545
Total recognised income and FERERHRA R
expense for the year AxeE - (20411) 57,49 - - 6,243 - - 4334 53 43377
Issue of shares of a subsidiary —RHER ﬂﬁﬁﬁw/ﬁ 49 - - - - - - - 49 - 49
Effect of group reorganisation SEEANYE 9,921 - - - (9921 - - - - - -
Issue of shares by way of placing BRARERAHRE
and public offer ES140) 22,000 275,000 = = = = = - 297,000 - 297,000
Issue of shares by way of FERARMEER
capitalisation of share HERL
premium account RETRM 56,000  (56,000) - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition of minority interest hEIEESEEANES - = - 4932 = = = - 4952 (495) =
Recognition of BANRELE
share-based payments ZHE - - - - - 4,327 4,327 - 4,327
Transfer to statutory reserve BALERHE - - (4856) - - - - 4,856 - - -
Dividends paid by subsidiaries HER AR EBRR
to their then shareholders E#2RE - - (33,000 - - - - - (33,000) - (33,000
Interim dividend paid BERTREHRE - - (10,560) - - - - - (10,560 - (10,560)
At 31 December 2007 RZ2RL+F
and 1 January 2008 +-A=+-BRk
—ZT)\5-A—H 88,000 198,589 213,807 8,036 (9,931) 9,069 4,327 7,666 519,563 - 519,563
Exchange difference on translation B E G EBEEE
of foreign operations MELES - - - - - 13,230 - - 13230 - 13230
Net income recognised ERTR=RERN
directly in equity LN - - - - 13,230 - - 13,230 - 13,230
Profit for the year FREMN - - 8,635 - - - - - 863 = 8,635
Total recognised income and FRERNEAR
expense for the year RAx#H - - 8,635 - - 13,230 - - 21,865 - 21,865
Recognition of HANRELE
share-based payments ZHE = = - - - 6,132 - 6,132 - 6,132
Final dividend paid BERRARE = - (1,920 = = = = - (7,920 - (7920
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+-A=+-8H 88,000 198589 214,522 8,036 (9,931) 22,299 10,459 7,666 539,640 - 539,640
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

an\ Eﬁi/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

2008
—EBN\E
Note HK$'000
B it FET
NET CASH GENERATED REXBMEB
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REeRE 36(a) 53,883
CASH FLOWS FROM REFHZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HERE
Decrease/(increase) in B R TE TR D
pledged bank deposits /()
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy 8% — BT B A A 36(b)
Interest received 27 B
Proceeds from disposals of HEWE - WBEREE
property, plant and equipment Fr 15 % 18 37
Purchase of property, plant BEME  HER
and equipment B (71,495)
Purchase of prepaid land BEEA
lease payments T #38 & B =
Deposits paid for the acquisition of TANmE - BBERR
property, plant and equipment ZE® (23,558)
Proceeds from gain on financial assets BRRAFFTABRER
at fair value through profit or loss SRMEE RS 4,837
Capital injection to a jointly | — A £ R 12 5] B 48
controlled entity AAE R S
Net cash used in investing activities REFEFRZEELFH (85,949)
CASH FLOWS FROM MEEH 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERE
Advance to a director =S
Advance from a director EEBK
Advance to an associate EE RN
Proceeds from issue of new shares by FREERAFRAEE
way of placing and public offer BT AR FT 15 3B
Payment of share issue and XA RMDETR
listing expenses FTER =
Dividends paid ERNEEEN (7,920)
Repayment of short term bank loans BEEHRITERN (45,010)
Repayment of obligations BERE
under finance leases iR ORESi (14,107)
Repayment of long term borrowings EEREER (6,180)
Long term borrowings raised ¥ iE & B AR K 16,000
Net cash (used in)/generated BEZETE (%) B
from financing activities REeF8 (57,217)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE REeREFREEH
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD) /& mFEeE (89,283)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HWRER
AT 1 JANUARY ZEHAEEA 166,039
Effect of foreign exchange b X £ B
rate changes -] (2,255)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+T-—HA=+—-H®
AT 31 DECEMBER RERERERTER 74,501
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND HEFERRSE
CASH EQUIVALENTS HE DM
Bank and cash balances W17 RIS EH
Bank overdraft RITBEX 28
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2007

—ZETLHF

HK$'000
FET

49,104

(185)
4,605
103
(78,883)
(7,525)
(4,606)
1,735

(8,120)
(92,879)

(22,774)
20,810
(6,600)
297,000
(22,572)
(43,560)
(3,871)

(9,335)
(5,480)

203,618

159,843
11,025

(4,829)

166,039

166,039

166,039



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

B SRR M e

For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE=

TP N\F+=A=t—BAILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box
1350 GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Room 1210,
Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2008, Precisefull Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate parent and Mr.
Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee"”) is the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”)
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2008.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards;
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain investments and derivatives which are carried at their
fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its
judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas involving critical judgements and areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. Control is
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group has
control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFTHE(E)

(continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued) (a) #=ERE (&)
The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHWEB QAT RG
represents the difference between the proceeds of the Wk BB R HEME KA
sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together HEAEEREGLGEEEFEE
with any goodwill relating to the subsidiary which was REMEBEWEB AR A
not previously charged or recognised in the EEHREAEERAKB IR
consolidated income statement and also any related MAEBERXREROBERMT
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. MEERFIELFEHENZ5 -
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised EERANBENRS - &%
profits on transactions between Group companies are FEBRNARBERSHKE
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless HRAeFAEE  REH
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of BREITE FUHEE BRIEX
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of SEBBEBEINIEEEED
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to WO E R BR AN o B R R A
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the A RFEEREEZTERED
Group. 23 ARRERNSEERERE

ME R B —3 -
(b) Business combination and goodwill (b) X6 KEE

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the subsidiary in an acquisition are measured at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in the consolidated
income statement and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing.
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50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
of accounting and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the associate in an acquisition are measured at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in the consolidated income statements.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statements, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Associates (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
represents the difference between the proceeds of the
sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together
with any goodwill relating to the associate which was
not previously charged or recognised in the
consolidated income statement and also any related

accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

(d) Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control over the
economic activity when the strategic financial and
operating decisions relating to the activity require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the

“venturers”).

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that
involves the establishment of a separate entity in which

each venturer has an interest.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) Joint venture (continued)

52

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method of accounting and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’'s share of the net fair value of the
jointly controlled entity’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in the income statement.

The Group’s share of a jointly controlled entity’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
entity.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a jointly controlled
entity represents the difference between the proceeds
of the sale and the Group’s share of its net assets
together with any goodwill relating to the jointly
controlled entity which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated income statement and
also any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Joint venture (continued)

(e)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses
resulting from this translation policy are included
in the consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are included in
the investment revaluation reserve in equity.
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3.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

- Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as
follows:
Buildings over the unexpired term of
lease
shorter of 5 years and the
unexpired term of lease

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

Construction in progress represents leasehold buildings
under construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Leases

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at
the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.

(h) Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEFEFTBE (&)

(continued)

(i) Inventories (i) 78
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FERAKANEQEEFEEMN
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted ERAHREEAR - KATS
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in RMEFHEEGE - BIK
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and an mMEEHEGEHKABERM
appropriate proportion of all production overhead ¥ BERIRMELEER
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting FEHERIR>BERAI(0E
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling A) fA#RFER -—REK
price in the ordinary course of business, less the BREFPHEFHEHEELAE
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs B AR AR K {5 85 & BT
necessary to make the sale. TERAGEHE -

(j). Recognition and derecognition of financial () BEARKRILIBEREMIA

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not
retained control on the assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale
financial assets.

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition. These investments are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in the income
statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets not classified as trade
and other receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised directly in
equity, until the investments are disposed of or
are determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in equity are recognised in the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESFTHE(E)

(continued)

(k) Investments (continued) (k) && (&)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) (i) AIfHESHEE (§)
Impairment losses recognised in the income A& E (548 AR HE
statement for equity investments classified as EcREE)EEEDX
available-for-sale financial assets are not MR BESR  HEi%
subsequently reversed through the income TZEERREE -
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the B TE(FEAMHE
income statement for debt instruments classified EEREE)NRFEE
as available-for-sale financial assets are 0= B AR EE
subsequently reversed and recognised in the BEBELEANEEER
income statement if an increase in the fair value AlstszE T EBEHEER
of the instruments can be objectively related to FERNBEBEZR
an event occurring after the recognition of the HEBgOTAEBZEP
impairment loss. R o

() Trade and other receivables () ESRHMEKNRE

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the allowance is the difference between the
receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The amount of the allowance is recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in the income statement when an
increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

(p)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

(r) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of goods are recognised on
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered and the title has passed

to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

(s) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time

of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the
income statement represents contributions

payable by the Group to the funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statements in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Taxation (continued)

(w)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

(i)
(iif)
(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or has joint
control over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a joint venture;

the party is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products and
services (business segment), or in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other

segments.

In accordance with the Group’'s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment as the secondary reporting

format.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
the segment. Unallocated costs mainly represent
corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of
property, plant and equipment, inventories and trade
receivables. Segment liabilities comprise operating
liabilities and exclude items such as tax liabilities and

corporate borrowings.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
Group enterprises within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based on terms mutually agreed

between the segments.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are
based on the countries in which customers are located.
Total assets and capital expenditure are based on

where the assets are located.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets,
except deferred tax assets, investments, inventories
and receivables, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEFFTBER (&)

(continued)

(z) Provisions and contingent liabilities (z) BERIAEE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain s 2N £ BEESMHAER
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal EXTEXEETEEMAER
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past EREEERNBETERE
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic EWXAIERAISEMHGT B2
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a MERTHEBHRSENERE
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value REE - WRIBEHEHEE
of money is material, provisions are stated at the BHEXR BEeUNBETEME
present value of the expenditures expected to settle TRHFFERXONRESR -
the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic WA ARNAER ELEENT R
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be B sk BB A EM
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a = ARETHRIRERE
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is W BIEBHLHE R
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only 8 B] B8 MR - RIMERIGR o
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of AEFARENEF(EFTASE
one or more future events are also disclosed as CEE " BEXZHEHRAREMH
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is 3 A EAmMEE) MRk A
remote. BERE BRIFSHLEN

Zom o) A ORE AR K - BIE
AllER e
(aa) Events after the balance sheet date (aa) FEHREHE

Events after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the balance sheet date or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the balance sheet date that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when material.

REAKEENREE BRI
BINEBEHIBRFELER
RYTEENEERARER
RABER - IRBRRE B
BER - UFFHEEENGE
BRER HBEKE A
KRB REMERNEE -
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4.

68

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Subsequent measurement of the available-for-sale
financial assets

The directors determine that the fair value of an equity
investment included in the available-for-sale financial
assets cannot be reliably measured as the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant. In
addition, the investment does not have a quoted
market price in an active market. According to HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments — Recognition and
Measurement”, such investment should be
subsequently measured at cost.

Legal titles of certain land

As stated in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the titles of two parcels of land were not
transferred to the Group as at 31 December 2008.
Despite the fact that the Group has not obtained the
relevant legal titles, the directors determine to
recognise those as prepaid land lease payments, on the
grounds that they expect the transfer of legal titles in
future should have no major difficulties and the Group
has been in substance controlling those parcels of land
as at 31 December 2008.

EREBEBRERERLDA

4.

B 52 | i K2 {4 5T

FE & AT R B B B 6 I

REREBRBRES  EFCIF
HATHMBERRDAEREHER
BEAZENHE -

(a)

(b)

A E % B E AR K AT
£
HRAFENSE G EE
BA BMEERARAUHBE
ETRER SERT & - UL SN - &%
BREAEREREMSHRE -
REZESAEREIRE
MTAE —HRBEFE] &
AREHBREBERAE °

B TLMHETERE
kR A BT AR M 15 P
o WE T EERER - F
ZENFTZA=Z+—-BHRK
BETAEE BELAKH
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4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key resources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Allowances for inventories

The directors identify obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production at each balance sheet date. The directors
estimate the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest selling prices and costs of
completion and selling expenses estimated at current
operation conditions. The directors carry out an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each
balance sheet date and makes allowance for obsolete
items.

Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance/write-back in the period in which such
estimates have been changed.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

B9 5 I B & (b 5t ()

HETHBAERNEEZERR

TXHmERBARZEZRR
REZERZEMEETREE M
KR - Mz FERE R HEE[EA
EERT-—BAYRFEEERRA
EHREMEAFHEAABZEX
Rk e

(a) FERFE
EENZEEHHAN &R
BEAEENBAR LFHET
EEHB - EEXTERBE&H
EELBEREERALTHE
ET 5T K AR AR K SH B B XX fh ET
ZEHFEMAER FE &
ERNEERHEEER —E1T
BE - WHBARIER ED &
f& o

MERGRKBREHER
EEHFAEEZE RAZREER
HEEFEREELDBRD
BB/ BEOME -

(b) YVF B REEARTE
AEEETEME HER
REOMGETAERFR KA
BAERX ~REGBELR
BEUAEERDENY X -
ek RENERAERF
HoeE&REL - EA&
HERELEAMHEENFRA
RE - A&EHEKETTER
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND 4.
ESTIMATES (continued)

B9 2 I B & (k5 (%)

HETHBERNEEZERR

Key resources of estimation uncertainty

70

(continued) (&)

(c) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts (c) RIZERA B EE 18
The Group makes impairment loss for bad and AEBERESE S K EME
doubtful debts based on assessments of the W sk I8 B BT 4 B 1 S S (B 4R
recoverability of the trade and other receivables, LEBANERSE2 LA E
including the current creditworthiness and the past BN ) M RBRELRE
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise iR BEREESFTHHE
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that MEREE  BRKTEH
the balances may not be collectible. The identification o o] 45 &2 B BE & - 3 B R =
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of RABERAHAEB KRG WE
judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is BERBHRRE X MEE - 8
different from the original estimate, such difference EHREZEBeFrE2FERE S
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other NE R 8 LA KR BR A
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in SHERmE -
which such estimate has been changed.

(d) Share-based payment expenses (d) UREZEZHERMT

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

The fair value of the share options granted to the
directors and employees determined at the date of
grant of the respective share options is expensed over
the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to
the Group’s share option reserve. In assessing the fair
value of the share options, the Black-Scholes option
pricing model (the “Black-Scholes Model”) was used.
The Black-Scholes Model is one of the generally
accepted methodologies used to calculate the fair
value of the share options. The Black-Scholes Model
requires the input of subjective assumptions, including
the expected dividend yield and expected life of
options. Any changes in these assumptions can
significantly affect the estimate of the fair value of the
share options.

EREBEBRERERLDA

BEYTEEhREENBRED
AFE(REBERERDLAH
BE)REBEHEXHE IR
5B R B R 1 AR
ERE AKBRBMRANR-
FESBEEERA(HED
R-FFBAHERN ) FABRE
M AFE - AR5 B ER
ASARFEBREAFE
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BAREAZRBATERR
EREBEHREXRRBAHER
BEH ZFBRENEMFME
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key resources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets include
equity interest in an unlisted company. The investment
is stated at cost as it does not have a quoted market
price in an active market and the directors regard that
fair values cannot be reliably measured. The directors
estimated the impairment loss by reference to the net
asset value from the financial statements of the
unlisted investment. Any difference in the future
recoverable amounts on the assets of the investment
from the estimates will have an impact on the
impairment loss.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

4.

B9 5 I B & (b 5t ()

HETHBAERNEEZERR

(#&)

(e)

(f)

Al B B EE A R E
]

AEBAHELEEREER
BER—HEFLTRANEKAN
oo ARNZBAEBRME R
B r-BE=ERRTEEAEN
AEEATE BZKRER
RAGNER - EFEEBRSE X
HELTRENTHHREF
MEEFEMGTREBIR -
ZEREMNBEENRBROA
YoEl & %8 A R At e E A
ERVSHRMEBEBREKT
@ .

BT 153 #

AEERZEREZERAR
MIMEHR REEMBHRE
EEFEFELERMGT - R
HEEBBEBETAERS N
AEZREBREOBTEE -
HMEZEFFTRIRRREAL
REPTEBEZBETE -
ZEREBTEZIREFLY
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72

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(a)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, United
States dollars (“USD"”) and Renminbi (“"RMB"). The
Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts
to mitigate the foreign currency risk arising from sales
of goods denominated in USD and purchases of raw
materials denominated in USD and RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of other foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

At 31 December 2008, if the HK$ had weakened 1 per
cent against the USD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,363,000 (2007:
HK$1,275,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on foreign currency forward
contracts and trade receivables denominated in USD. If
the HK$ had strengthened 1 per cent against the USD
with all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$9,180,000 (2007: HK$4,427,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on foreign currency forward contracts
and trade receivables denominated in USD.

EWEBEBRERERDA

B 75 B Bz B 32

AEBRAREXEBEMAXZRMB
Rk SMERR - FERBR - RE
BExRBRMNEEAR AEBEE
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AR TR - A SRR R AR B
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2008, if the HK$ had weakened 10
per cent against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax would have
been approximately HK$8,108,000 (2007:
HK$275,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on foreign currency forward
contracts. If the HK$ had strengthened 10 per cent
against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax would have been
approximately HK$11,540,000 (2007: HK$3,329,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on foreign currency forward contracts.

Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade receivables included
in the consolidated balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group’s financial assets.

The percentage of trade receivables due from the
Group’s largest customer and due from the Group’s
five largest customers in aggregate to the Group’s total
trade receivables are as follows:

Due from the Group’s largest JE UL AN &= B & K
customer % F B

Due from the Group’s five largest & U A~ & [E 1 K
customers =P RIE

5.

M EREE (4

(a)

(b)

il

ShEE LB (%8 )

RZZTEZENF+ZA =+
—H - WBETAARERE

10% @ 1 H fth B 7 2 84 55
T8 AFARRERE S G

A % 12 10 498,108,00078 7T ( —
TEZ A 22750008 ) 0 E
ZHARUNAREGTEHNIINE
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MEMBESHERTE
EIJEWE’%M&JE@%U%A@%
A #11,540,000 8 T(Z B ZE
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, bank and
cash balances and derivative financial instruments is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities

is as follows:

At 31 December 2008

Long term borrowings

Obligations under
finance leases

Short term borrowings

Other payables and
accruals
Trade payables

Due to a related company
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit

or loss

At 31 December 2007

Long term borrowings
Obligations under finance

leases

Short term borrowings

Other payables and
accruals
Trade payables

Due to a related company

Due to an associate

74  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Less than
1 year
PR—F
HK$°000
FE T
R-ZZEENE
+=H=+—8H
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H e RIE R
JEETE R 27,134
g 5N IE 53,306
FE S 8 R~ R 5RIE 792
BERFETA
B R
B E 3,047
R-EELHF
+=—HA=+—H
K Hifg 3K 6,180
B E 4
A 7,166
EHIE R 68,932
H e 3R
KEFTER 27,555
Z 5 RN IE 61,381
FE 15 B8 & & R 5K IE 806
FE 19 B8 & & R 5K IE 4,246
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from
its bank deposits, short term and long term borrowings
and obligations under finance leases. These deposits
and borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied
with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2008, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$7,000 higher,
arising mainly as a result of lower interest expenses on
bank and other borrowings but partly offset by lower
interest income on bank and cash balances. If interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher, with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been approximately
HK$68,000 lower, arising mainly as a result of higher
interest expenses on bank and other borrowings but
partly offset by higher interest income on bank and
cash balances.

At 31 December 2007, if interest rates at that date
had been 100 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been approximately
HK$992,000 lower, arising mainly as a result of a loss
on lower interest income on bank and cash balances
but partly offset by lower interest expenses on bank
and other borrowings. If interest rates had been 100
basis points higher, with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
would have been approximately HK$992,000 higher,
arising mainly as a result of a gain on higher interest
income on bank and cash balances but partly offset by
higher interest expenses on bank and other
borrowings.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet approximate their respective fair values.

5.
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6.

76

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the sale and
manufacture of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy
die casting components.

Turnover represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold, net of returns and
allowances to customers during the year.

I
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXBEIHESR (F)
INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Business segments (b) 2% 2
For management purposes, the Group’s operation is BERHEEIRE  AXN&EEHIRGHE
currently categorised into three operating divisions — B h=-H&EEINM — &
zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy die casting ERkinEeBEH - ZZFF
components. These divisions are the basis on which the MrREAESEEFRETEHIAE
Group reports its primary segment information. PRy E % o
Magnesium Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy alloy
die casting die casting die casting
components components components Consolidated
#E8 -3k BEe
BE4 B## BE# )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
Income statement Bi &
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE_ZTN\F
+-A=+-8
Turnover S 382,797 128,489 173,848 685,134
Segment results PEELE 22,841 15,343 417 42,355
Unallocated other income THBEEMBA 2,687
Unallocated expenses ABEMES (20,471)
Profit from operations BEEA 24,571
Finance costs # ﬁ KA (2,449)
Share of loss of a jointly PMEEREHER
controlled entity & (1,292)
Impairment loss on AHEESR
available-for-sale financial assets BEZREEE (6.:303)
Profit before tax BR Bt AL A 14,527
Balance sheet BEGER
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNF
+-A=t-8
Segment assets PHBEE PAENYL] 155,075 120,440 489,144
Investment in a jointly controlled HEREHEEN
entity RE& 7,470 7,470
Unallocated assets THEEE 213,671
Total assets BEBE 710,285
Segment liabilities Al *IS af 50,032 14,016 18,804 82,852
Unallocated liabilities PEER 87,793
Total liabilities a ERE 170,645
Other segment information: Hth 2 HBER
Capital expenditure BARY } ; g 52,106
Unallocated amounts THE8E 56,827
108,933
Depreciation neE ; ! ! 31,056
Unallocated amounts THEYE 1,451
32,507
Other non-cash expenses other I & R S LA AN
than depreciation and HitER &
amortisation 53
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pon P AN 2=
6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXBEROAMER (E)
INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Business segments (continued) (b) £85I (8&)
Zinc alloy  Magnesium alloy  Aluminium alloy
die casting die casting die casting
components components components Consolidated
HEe gae ek
B&H BEH E& &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAETL FET
Income statement BRE
Year ended 31 December 2007 BIE-ZTZLF
TZRA=+-RLEE
Turnover EER 551,812 112,184 88,753 752,749
Segment results HHEE 64,298 19,395 1,335 85,028
Unallocated other income THBEEMKA 8,769
Unallocated expenses TRER% (16,396)
Profit from operations F Nl 77,401
Finance costs BEKK (5,995)
Share of loss of an associate PEBERRAER (1,40) = = (1.401)
Share of loss of a jointly R
controlled entity BRER = (281) = (281)
Impairment loss on IHHESREAEL
available-for-sale financial assets MEEE (2,000)
Profit before tax B& % A1 & A 67,724
Balance sheet BESEX
At 31 December 2007 “TTtF
+ZRA=+—H
Segment assets PHEE 258,767 107,337 96,398 462,502
Investment in an associate ;TH?#%’R ANEE 1,115 - - 1,115
Investment in a jointly controlled HERETIER
entity MEE - 8,259 = 8,259
Unallocated assets AoBEE 246,520
Total assets BELE 718,396
Segment liabilties ABAE 66,659 11,007 17,563 95,229
Unallocated liabilities THEakE 103,604
Total liabilities BREE 198,833
Other segment information: EtaHER :
Capital expenditure EENEE 19,640 21,265 23,616 64,521
Unallocated amounts THEYE 30,445
94,966
Depreciation & 11,574 6,433 3,705 21,712
Unallocated amounts THEYE 930
22,642
Other non-cash expenses other WE R &M
than depreciation and HitgER &
amortisation X 442 872 23 1,337

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

EREBEBRERERLDA



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A HmERMNEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)N\FE+_A=1+—ALEE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. EXERPBER (B)

INFORMATION (continued)

(c) WED

(c) Geographical segments

The Group’s principal markets are located in three main
geographical areas, namely, Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and Japan. An analysis of
revenue, total assets and capital expenditure by
geographical segment is set out below:

AREZEBTBURES
FEARKAE(FE]) K
AASZEEEBE  BEH
Wz MAEREAR
X2 HWBIIMT -

Revenue Total assets Capital expenditure
W %5 BEE BEXBX
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
=LA — T F B — T E Bl 6 C T &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAT FET FAT FET FAT
Hong Kong BB LAERYA| 467,357 154,140 289,897 670 2,759
The PRC i 78,943 76,123 556,145 428,499 108,263 92,207
Japan A 90,934 93,394 - - - -
Others Hi 101,436 115,875 - - - -
685,134 752,749 710,285 718,396 108,933 94,966
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HAttg A
2008 2007
—E2ENEF —ETLEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Interest income B W A 2,661 4,219
Interest income from subscription 7 B 3% & fff 15 3R &
monies upon public offering FIE B F B A 383
Rental income e A 116
Sales of scrap materials [ S == 1,970
Product development fee income 7 & 5 3 & B Ik A 102
Gain on financial assets at fair BAFEFABZESN
value through profit or loss & B & E W 3,862
Gain on disposal of listed HELEMES
securities I 2= 188
Management fee from an =R RN
associate B 156
Others H 209
11,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

8.

80
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FINANCE COSTS 8.
2008 2007
—EZ)\F e
HK$'000 HK$°'000
FHET FET
Interest expenses on bank RITEZIREXK
overdraft and loans PN 1,333 4,875
Finance lease charges BEMRLY T 1,116 1,120
2,449 5,995
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIEHHAX
2008 2007
=L — T T L F
HK$000 HK$°000
FERT FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BEASiTE — BBNEH
Provision for the year R EBAE 5,290 8,808
(Over)/under-provision in BEEE GRERE) /
prior years BETRE ()] 267
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax B E3 % 18 — fh B > 2 18§
Provision for the year INF E B 191 1,098
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBDR = 6
Deferred tax (note 32) EIER B (B aE32) 480 =
5,892 10,179

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits of Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2008. Two of the Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Company Limited
("Ka Fung Metal”) and Wing Yu (Far East) Industries
Company Limited (“Wing Yu"”), are within the scope of the
Departmental Interpretation Practice Note No. 21 issued by
the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong, that they
conducted their manufacturing operations by entering into
processing arrangements with the processing factories in the
PRC, and hence 50% of the adjusted profits were treated as
offshore and not taxable in Hong Kong.

EWEBEBRERERDA

BHE-_ZZENE+_A=+—RHILEE
CERFGHBERESTMWETE QA
ZIEET R B A AR R165% (= F
TEF175%)ELEHE MEBRB
B ARELEBERMAERA A
(2B )RR (ZRER)EXAR
AR ([ ]) Ty FESE P B/ T MET
UNMILRHETEEEY  £EEXB
EEMEREMRNHEERER RTTE
SIE2IHATNEE @ WELAREF
50% R ABEF N  BAERBEMNT -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

S

9.

—2E\Ft-A=+—HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

In December 2006, one of the subsidiaries of the Group,
MG Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“"MG
Technology”) was recognised as a “New and High
Technology Enterprise” by Shenzhen Municipal Technology
and Information Bureau, and its 50% tax relief was
extended for another three years commencing from January
2007. As a result, it was entitled to a 50% relief (should not
be lower that 10%) from PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The tax rate
applicable to this subsidiary in the PRC, after the 50% relief,
was 10%.

The new PRC EIT Law passed by the Tenth National People’s
Congress on 16 March 2007 introduces various changes
which include the unification of the EIT rate for domestic
and foreign enterprises at 25%. The new tax law was
effective from 1 January 2008.

From 2008 onwards, the tax rate of MG Technology would
be subject to the transitional arrangements under the new
PRC EIT Law effective on 1 January 2008.

According to B #£[2007] 5 395% (Guofa[2007]39) issued by
the State Council dated 26 December 2007, regarding
enterprises established and operating in Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone, the applicable EIT rates are as follows:

Year F 5

2008 —ETENF
2009 —ZETNF
2010 —E-FF
2011 = ——4
2012 — T

Since MG Technology has not yet obtained the
Technologically High and New Enterprises qualification under
the new PRC EIT Law, it would therefore be subject to 18%
EIT rate in 2008.

Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited (“Ka Shui
Huizhou”) and Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company Limited
(“Ka Yi Huizhou") have no assessable profits since their
establishment and hence no provisions were made during
the year.

FriE®im < (&)

RZZEERFT+ A A&EEHK
Bralz—AlEEXMECRIN)AE
RAm (Tl xR BRI
MEMNEEREEARI S Kid
Xl ENBERYEERE—FL
R=F BH-_TTLF—ARHK -
Bt EBE_TTLF+-A=
T HALEFENRECERSHR
(TREmBEHR]) ERF (EAFD
R10%) - BRARZTEOK B
AlZHMEERFRBI10% °

i

EA—vv‘th )E]JF/\H%JF
IAEﬁ%ﬁALLﬂZﬁ$I¢
XM ESEZEHEHBER
—RNIINEEZELEMSRE %
25% c IR ER —_EENF— A —
H AR e

H-ZZNFE BeERRZM
XRRBFR_ZFENF-—H—HE
ERZHTPBEEEMEVIEZBE
M=k -

BEBREEA-_ZEZELFE+ -/ =
TARERRRINE BT EKY R
WWZ@%%%ZI%Qmﬂ%w
SR BAZEEMSHERAT :

EIT rate
TEREHRE

18%
20%
22%
24%
25%

HRASERIRI AREFH P
FTBEHMETRIESMBMEESR
% AMER-_ZEZENFHEIZI8%
EMBHEH o

EhAR(EMN) ERAA#HK
BEMDEREMK(EMN BARA
A(TEEEIM]) B KA KL E
JERR Btk A - B AN E 3 AR
WA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

No provision for income tax in jurisdiction other than Hong
Kong and the PRC has been made as the Group has no
assessable profit subject to overseas income tax for the year

ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong

profits tax rate is as follows:

FriE®im < (&)

HRAEERBEE_ZTTNE+
_H +—E1Jt$r“14ﬂ/i9l\ﬁﬁ
SREBZEZRHREN(ZZ =+
¢ &) WMBEARBERHBEB
INbEZEEAEERRTEBRIEL
BE o

FT 15 5% B 52 B2 B B AT O A R A &R
MNERBREAERSERNEKR
LI

2008 2007
—EENE ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax B % A1 v A 14,527 67,724
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate 1% %& 7% F| 8 % £16.5%
at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) —ZEBEELFE 17.5%)
FrE /IR 11,852
Tax effect of expenses that are AT A0 R B 2 A
not deductible B & 2,078
Tax effect of income that is AR 1451 A B
not taxable MG E (217)
Tax effect of temporary RERY E‘I ZEK
differences not recognised -k 240
(Over)/under-provision in BEFE GBEEE) /
previous year BEIR 245
(Under)/over-provision for AEE(BETR)
current year BB 260
Tax effect of profit that is not T R o2 HA 8 78 AR B s A /Y
taxable under tax holidays e 2 (1,219)
Tax effect of change in tax rate T 2% & &) 1) B 165 52 & (259)
Effect of different tax rates of B AR ETR
subsidiaries MG E (2,829)
Income tax expense FEHAx 10,179
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)N\FE+_A=1+—ALEFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/
(crediting) the following:

10. £ A= F

AKRBFERZBMEMR(FTA)

Allowance for doubtful debt RERBE
Allowance for inventories GEREEB(BRESHE
(included in cost of BEEFE
inventories sold) XA )
Auditor's remuneration % SR BN &
Bad debts written off 2 B 84
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAN
Depreciation of property, plant M MR NR
and equipment e
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEWE  HER
property, plant and equipment BBz ER (W)
Loss on financial liabilities at fair ~ #% A ¥ {4 5 A 18 25 BF
value through profit or loss MEMmBERERX
Impairment loss on AEHEmEEDN
available-for-sale financial BB & 18
assets
Listing expenses ETmEA
Net exchange gain b & I 2=
Operating lease charges in T REFHLE
respect of land and buildings A S
Research and development i 2 &2
expenditure
Staff costs: B TR A :
Directors’ emoluments E=Ma
(note 11(a)) (Ktat11(a))
Wages and salaries ITERF®
Equity-settled share-based LA BR # 45 E LA RR 19
payments (excluding = i 89 5K I8
directors) (TBEES)

Others staff benefits
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions (excluding

directors)

Hfth 8 T 1& 7
R R RN
(TERESE)

To&H :

2008 2007
St == =
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHAT
224 803
1,108 534
752 782

867 =
523,172 559,909
32,507 22,642
74 (101)

1,487 =
6,303 2,000

= 2,161
(2,794) (1,647)
2,316 1,540
6,717 4,354
9,594 8,939
124,007 89,610
4,725 3,376
4,279 3,606
5,689 7,536
148,294 113,067

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation
and operating lease charges of approximately
HK$128,230,000 (2007: HK$90,726,000), which are
included in the amounts disclosed separately.

Research and development expenditure includes staff costs
of approximately HK$2,580,000 (2007: HK$1,290,000),
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately.

BEEEGFERABEE TRA - 47
EN&ZEMEAMAES #4128,230,000
B (ZZFZF - F 90,726,000 7

) BECRZBENRBEE

MELTHRBEBYIRENE TK
K 472,580,000 L (ZEFE L F :

1,290,000 7T ) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

S

11. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS (KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL) AND

84

—FENFHZA=+—BLFRE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(a)

Emoluments of directors (key management

11. &
=

ES
585

o
it
A
7l
\

/

]/‘\
|.|.|,
i
i

o M
>._

(a) EB(XEEEBAR NS

personnel)
The emoluments of each director were as follows: ZEENMERT :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Discretionary  Share-based scheme
Fees  allowances bonus payments contributions Total
DRELE BINEH
Be HFEREHR HERA ZRAE b o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Name of director EEpg
Year ended BE-_ZZN\F
31 December 2008 +=ZB=+-H
tFEE
Executive directors BITES
Mr. LEE Yuen Fat FRBEE = 2,491 = 384 12 2,887
Dr. KEUNG Wing Ching ZXKEFL - 1,988 - 260 12 2,260
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen BEXKRELE = 962 = 260 12 1,234
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan [ 2 % 4 - 1,300 - 247 12 1,559
Mr. ZHAO Jian Wi EE = 939 = 256 9 1,204
Independent BYFHTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. SUN Kai Lit, Cliff KRR RLSE s,

BBS, JP ATt 150 - - - - 150
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok EEEE LT vH,

MH, JP ATt 150 - - - - 150
Mr. YEOW Hoe Ann, John  #kM % % 4 150 - - - - 150
Total for 2008 —EENFEE 450 7,680 - 1,407 57 9,594
Year ended BE-Z2tHE

31 December 2007 +=ZA=+-8

LEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. LEE Yuen Fat TRELAE = 2,091 310 259 12 2,672
Dr. KEUNG Wing Ching EKEEL = 1,787 265 173 12 2,237
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen BEABELE - 759 145 173 12 1,089
Mr. CHAN Tat Cheong, Alan B i E % & = 1,182 180 173 12 1,547
Mr. ZHAO Jian ik e = 770 180 173 7 1,130
Independent BIkBTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. SUN Kai Lit, Cliff TR 5 A 8BS,

BBS, JP A¥@t 88 - - - - 88
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok EERB LM,

MH, JP A¥@t 88 - - - _ 38
Mr. YEOW Hoe Ann, John  #k#1 % % & 388 = = = = 88
Total for 2007 g Sk 264 6,589 1,080 951 55 8,939

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\FE+_A=1+—ALEFE

11. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS (KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL) AND
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Emoluments of directors (key management
personnel) (continued)

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year (2007: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included 5 (2007: 4) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments of the remaining individual for
the year ended 31 December 2007 are set out below:

EXRFH & lERM
B 15 TE 4T

Basic salaries and allowances
Discretionary bonus
Share-based payments
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

AR HE 45 B 2 3R
R R R

(b)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /%& T &

1,500,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EE(XEEEARE)ME

FABEBEEERNRXREN
ZEEAMENLTH(ZTT L
F &)

FEBREHFAL

AEENAEEA e ALTE
SR (ZEZELF 1 4%)E
E-AEMeFBEHR LEX
Mothe REBEZE_FZFTL£F
+—A=Z+—BLFEHT

Eagm ATHMEeMT
2008 2007
—E2EENEF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
845
160
259
12
1,276

e N FUATEE :
Number of individuals
A

2007
—EELF

FRA AKEBEALEREFNL
R AL MEMERN
AR B 2R ERX
HMBROHEZHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE=

12.

13.

86

FEN\F+= A=t BILEE

DIVIDENDS

Interim of Nil (2007: HK$0.012)
per ordinary share paid

BENEREBERS

EAR B
Proposed final of HK$0.006 B E
(2007: HK$0.009) per ordinary

share paid ZEBARBARKRE

T
(ZZEZLF 00128 1T)Z

i [%0.006 % 7T
—ZETLF:0.009%T)

12.

On 1 February 2007, the directors of one of the subsidiaries,
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited (“Ka Shui HK"), proposed
a final dividend of HK$30,000 each per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2006 totalling HK$3,000,000
to its then shareholders. On 1 February 2007, the directors
of another subsidiary, Ka Fung Metal, proposed a final
dividend of HK$3,000 each per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2006 totalling HK$30,000,000 to its
then shareholders. On 2 February 2007, the shareholders of
Ka Shui HK and Ka Fung Metal approved the above
proposed final dividends respectively. These proposed final
dividends were fully settled in May 2007, and included as a
movement in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basis earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2008 is based on the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$8,635,000 (2007: HK$57,492,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 880,000,000 (2007:
774,520,548) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary share during the
two years ended 31 December 2008.

ELBERERERA

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

13.

g
2008 2007
S AU —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FET
10,560
7,920
18,480
R-ZTT A—A  HERA
Z—RERMARAA([RHKSE
BINEFEEAARAERRRIK

BHE_ZEENF+-_A=+—H
I FE SR EREBK30,000% TH R
B AR & - & ££3,000,00078 T o B
—ziti A—H ' Z—HKB
NA 2L BREFMEERBRREIKR
%é@:l:—? 7/\55'5—1— )E] + E|
I FE &R RK30008 T AR
B A% B - A 30,000,000 T ° B
—EE+E-_A=-H EBREAER
ZLSBAORED BIME E it E
REAKE - ZZEEZZAHAREER
—ZEZT+FEHA igﬁlﬁ}ﬁjtef’ﬁi%
—BEHHALGEESEHR -

a))
=
B
SH

vyl

EHEBABRBGEHNERE
BEEE _ZTZN\F+
—BLEFEARAKE
E 1 &9 )% F 498,635,000 /5
T + £ : 57,492,000 /B
L) RFRBETHMEFHER
fi% 880,000,000 fi% ( — & T + 4 :
774,520,5480% ) it &

|
=5
20 ot

SIS
oF REE
[T |1 2 o

wm+m%

BERBEERA

HRARRAEBE_TTNF+=
A=+t —BLEZMEFERLEE
EEBRD  BOREERINEREE
AF| o



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BTSRRI (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_TT ) \F+-A=+—HILFE

T o
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9)% - ER=HE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and Computer office Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ improvements machinery equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
B
EELER
B HRENEEE HEREER EHRE  BOERR RE ERIR 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost BR&
At 1 January 2007 R=ZT+t5-f-H 53,776 3,891 134,648 4,025 7,358 6,264 - 209,962
Additions NE 669 58 63,678 2,415 87 1,013 27,046 94,966
Disposal HE - - (351) - 9 (310) - (670)
Exchange difference EXEE 3,017 - 7613 28 174 262 - 11,094
At 31 December 2007 and  R=-ZZLE
1 January 2008 TZA=T-Ak
—EEN\5-A-H 57,462 3,949 205,588 6,468 7,610 71,229 27,046 315,352
Acquisition of a subsidiary B A — I H B2 & 2,825 1,138 5,686 118 71 38 - 9,876
Additions NE 2,990 1,716 47,010 477 22 1,296 55,422 108,933
Disposal HE = - (4,106) (1,169) (3,599) (350) - (9,224)
Exchange difference EXER 2,967 - 9,207 28 1 271 2,486 15,130
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+=ZA=1+-H 66,244 6,803 263,385 5922 4,275 8,484 84,954 440,067
Accumulated Rt E
depreciation
At 1 January 2007 W=Z2Z+5-F—-H 5,008 1,404 49,679 2,249 5179 3,096 - 66,615
Charge for the year ERMNK 2617 757 16,808 686 970 804 - 22,642
Disposal he - - (279) - (5) (264) - (548)
Exchange difference EXER 414 - 1455 18 97 79 - 2,063
At 31 December 2007 and R -EE+ 45
1 January 2008 +=B=+-HK
—EZN\5-A-H 8,039 2,161 67,663 2,953 6,241 3,715 - 90,772
Charge for the year FRMK 3,480 1,382 24,591 1,385 532 1,137 - 32,507
Disposal HE - - (4,106) (1,169) (3,560) (278) - (9,113)
Exchange difference EiEE 500 = 1843 2 112 99 - 2,575
At 31 December 2008 RZZTN\E
+-A=F-H 12,019 3,543 89,991 3,190 3,325 4,673 - 116,741
Carrying amount R E
At 31 December 2008 RZZEN
+-A=+-8 54,225 3,260 173,394 2,732 950 3,811 84,954 323,326
At 31 December 2007 RZ2E+4E
+-R=+-H 49,423 1,788 137,925 3,515 1,369 3,514 27,046 224,580

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
pledged as security for the Group’'s banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$2,527,000 (2007:
HK$2,592,000).

The Group leases plant and machinery and motor vehicles
under finance leases expiring from 3 to 5 years. None of the
leases include contingent rentals.

The net carrying amount of plant and machinery and motor
vehicles held by the Group under finance leases amounted
to approximately HK$45,283,000 (2007: HK$20,550,000).

BREE4 A2,527,0008 Tt (2 F
£ F 2,592,000 ) K % - #
BLREBEEER (FEAKXEEN
WITEEER -

AEEZRBEAOERERE KA
B RP=FE1F HOATEHE

AEERBEHOMHESERUE

#) BR M 18 49 A& 45,283,000 7T ( —
ZTE A ¢ 20,550,000 7T ) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS A A S

2008 2007

—E2EENF —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FEL

At 1 January n—HA—H 33,893 10,544

Additions NE - 23,040
Amortisation of prepaid land EN LA E

lease payments # H (269) (260)

Exchange difference fE X =58 2,001 569

At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H 35,625 33,893

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are analysed as

follows:
In Hong Kong: BHBEA
Medium-term leases FHRE
Outside Hong Kong: EAEE N
Medium-term leases RHIE &

AEBRNLIHESIHET

2008 2007

== 2 NN —TT &
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TAET

634 650

34,991 33,243

35,625 33,893

The carrying amount of prepaid land lease payments
pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$634,000 (2007:
HK$650,000).

Included in prepaid land lease payments are two parcels of
land amounted to approximately HK$24,493,000 (2007:
HK$23,040,000) of which the Group is in the process of
applying for the land use rights certificates, which have not
yet been issued by the relevant government authority.

88  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ~ZIzEBIEZERER A

BRAEEX A634,0008 T (—EZE+
% : 650,000 L) MEN THEE
BEEER - ERASBMERTE
ERER -

ENIHBAcBERRESESG H
£24,493,0008 L (Z 2T + F ¢
23,040,000 L) 2 £ i - A& E
FTEAERFLHERAEISE
MZEFBFEHARER B BT KEH
B o



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TT \F+-_A=1+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. EE RN NKRE

2008
—2BNE
HK$’000
S

Unlisted investment FEEMKE
Share of net assets E(REEFE

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2007 are as

follows: BEE A ARFBOT :

Wing Yu Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary 40% Provision of surface
shares of HK$1 finishing treatment
each services

KA BB 100,000 f% 40% REFTEEERS
REE1S T
EORER il

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BEAREBEEE QAWM ERHT
associate is set out below: 2mh

2008
=S 1%

HK$°000
TET

At 31 December R+=-—FA=+—8H

Total assets BEBRE

Total liabilities BEBRE

Net assets B EFE

Group's share of the associate’s 7N &% [E (G Bt & A 7] 2
net assets EEFE
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16.

17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

(continued)

Year ended 31 December

Total revenue

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

BE1T_A=1+—HIFE
W 25 48 78

e oo
16. ¥ B = o

Total loss for the year

FABERAE

2008 2007
EEIIN N == -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBT FHT
45,286

(3,502)

Group's share of the
associate’s loss for the year

AEBOEBERT

FAEBE

The Group acquired the remaining 60% equity interest of
Wing Yu during the year. The acquisition was effective on 1
January 2008. After the acquisition, Wing Yu has became a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group (note 36(b)).

Unlisted investment
Share of net assets

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY

FLETERE

EHEEEFE

(1,401)

AEER iWHﬂZﬁ%ﬂUrﬁGO%HﬂE
WBER_-_ZZENF—H—

B R

*%EWR$%E

2EBEBH B AR (ME36(b)) -

1778 EESER

2008 2007
—ETN\F —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#E T FAETT
7,470 8,259

Details of the jointly controlled entity at 31 December 2008

are as follows:

Name

AR

Ka Shui Yinguang
Technology (Wenxi)

Limited

5 Im SR e B i
(BE)BRAA

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

registration

Registered capital

i & A

RMB20,000,000

A K #20,000,000 7T

ERBEERERAERLD

RZZEZNF+_A=+—BZXE
Bz RZEHNEEFBOT :

Percentage of
ownership
interest/profit
sharing
R
wmFE D

40%

40%

Principal
activities

TEEK

Manufacture of
magnesium
alloy die casting
products and
components

EEHEA®
R & 1+



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A mERNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\FE+_A=1+—ALEFE

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY 17.

CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)

The following amounts are the Group’s share of assets,
liabilities, turnover and expenses of the jointly controlled
entity that are accounted for and included in the Group's
financial statements using equity method of accounting.

I

HHEZFHEENR

\

=~

ATBAREEDIEZAREFER
MEE A 2XBLRAXZH
B DRERSSHEZEAEEYB
HRATER

2008 2007
=20 =T F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TAET

At 31 December R+=Z/F=+—H
Current assets mEE E 2,798 3,754
Non-current assets ERBE E 5,386 4,577
Current liabilities mEaE (714) (72)
Net assets BEFE 7,470 8,259
Year ended 31 December HBHE2+_—_HA=+—HIFE
Turnover & X 2,818 838
Other income =N 34 -
Expenses 3 4,144 1,119
Group's share of loss of the AEBESEHAZHESZ
jointly controlled entity for FANEE
the year (281)
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 1. AEEEmEE
ASSETS
2008 2007
—ETNF —E2EELHF
HK$000 HK$°000
FE T FET
Unlisted equity, at cost FEEMBRA (K AFTE) 8,303 8,303
Impairment loss wEEE (8,303) (2,000)
- 6,303

Unlisted equity is carried at cost as it does not have a
quoted market price in an active market and the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair
value cannot be reliably measured. Details of impairment
criteria are set out in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

BN IEEMRALEERT SR
B MAEEAFEMAHNEENK
K ARAEFR/EAFETH
BHEGFE  BFLTRAREDR
AN - BEREFBEEHR AL
B W5 @R M aE4Ce) o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ire R T @

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

19. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AND PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

At 31 December 2008, included in deposits paid for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments was a deposit of HK$9.8 million (2007:
HK$6.5 million) paid to a related company, Chit Shun

Machinery Limited, for the acquisition of machinery.

20. INVENTORIES

R-ZBEENE+_A=+—8 &
ENEEWE  KRIRZBEREN
TiHerRe R ERBEERSEM
m—HEAEARRAKBEERR
N A X 2 % & #9,800,000 % JT
(ZZZ L F : 6,500,000/87C) °

20. 7 &

2008
—2FN\F
HK$°000
FTET
62,831

6,070
26,719
30,604

Raw materials R A

Consumables supplies and SHFEm &
spare parts HRZ I

Work in progress EE R

Finished goods 2K G

Less: Allowance for inventories W FERE

126,224
(1,108)

125,116

92  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

EREBEBRERERLDA

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FET
52,708

4,324
34,997
26,849

118,878
(534)

118,344



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A mERNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\FE+_A=1+—ALEFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally ranged from 30 to 90 days
(2007: 30 to 75 days). Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of allowance,
is stated as follows:

0 to 30 days T E30H

31 to 60 days 31HZE60H
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H
91 to 180 days 91H £180H
Over 180 days 180 H A E

21. E 5 BINFR

AEBEHEFZRIAIAHSUEE
FRET - FEHBY AR E
HTE(ZZEZLF : 30HETS
H) - SXFHESESEERSE-
REERDBERBIEHERKEZE
WHIE - EZHEmB R RETTEH
BE ERNBEZAHZ2EHEKRK
H (BRI 2BREDTOT ¢

2008
—2FENF
HK$°000
TET
52,245

21,572
13,983
9,084
561

97,445

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ T
usD ETT
RMB AR
Others H b

2007
—ETELF
HK$°000
FE T
71,339
24,150
8,910

9,286

1,806

115,491

ZEHRWKRIAREED N TG

RE L

2008
—BENE
HK$°000
F# T
10,289

69,248
16,194
1.714

97,445

At 31 December 2008, an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,053,000 (2007: HK$803,000).

2007
ZETLF
HK$'000
FH&T
21,031
76,676
16,141
1,643

115,491

R-ZEENF+-A=+-H8 B
HEFTEZEWE 2B S BB KRIEE
R B & 491,053,000 T (=2 F
+ 4 : 803,000 L) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE SRR R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EZ B RIE (&)
At 31 December 2008, trade receivables of approximately R_EEZENF+_A=+—H
HK$38,609,000 (2007: HK$45,440,000) were past due but #738,609,000 8 L ( — T T + F :
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 45,440,000 7T ) B & 5 & WK H
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. BEHEERERE ZEHRESA
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables, based on the FREROVTEHERCENB LR
due date, is as follows: Bl - mH B 5 EWRFKIBERIE D H

BERREDITT :

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Up to 3 months 31E A AR 34,861 37,624
4 to 6 months 4ZE61E A 2,655 6,472
Over 6 months 618 A M E 1,093 1,344
45,440
22. FINANCIAL (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS AT 2. BLFEFABTRZ
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR TR(BE) &E
LOSS
—EBENEF
HK$°000
FHETT
Foreign currency forward BHIINE & 4
contracts (3.047)
The carrying amounts of the above financial (liabilities)/assets tiiem(a®) BEFREAE
are classified as held for trading. REIEEERR -

94  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited % %% BIFRIZ B B IR 2 &



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\FE+_A=1+—ALEFE

22. FINANCIAL (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS AT .
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR ER(AaE)
LOSS (continued)

EREBRETDBEBRAFERERASE
BiRftEHREENITETRARKRE -
HREERETRARE  RiEA
MEBASEEMIINEZRSER

The investments included above represent investments in
derivatives that offer the Group the opportunity for return
through fair value gains. The underlying currency is USD and
RMB. The notional amounts of foreign currencies to be

acquired or sold under contracts are set out below: (AN
2008 2007
—E2EN\F e 3

Notional amount HKS$ equivalent Notional amount HK$ equivalent
ERtH BLTEE &2 H BTEE
Sales of HK$ in exchange  JH & 7T USD18 million 140.4 million UsD28 million 218.4 million
for USD BEAZTT E I ESp 140,400,000 jT 28,000,000 7T 218,400,000 7T
Sales of USD in exchange  JHH =TT USD34 million 265.2 million UsD22 million 171.6 million
for HK$ BABT 34,000,000 % T 265,200,000 T 22,000,000 7T 171,600,0007T
Sales of USD in exchange  JHH =TT USD39 million 304.2 million USD6 million 46.8 million
for RMB EPNNES Sl 39,000,000 5 T 304,200,000 7T 6,000,000 T 46,800,000 T
Sales of RMB in exchange & il A R USD2 million 15.6 million - -

for USD BEAZT 2,000,000 % 7t 15,600,000 7

SNEEHANYEBREREE X -
WIFIH - TETAERATFENUSF
ROMBEXREOTRANEIE

The foreign currency forward contracts have no fixed
coupon rate and have maturity of approximately 1 year. The
fair values of the derivatives are determined by reference to

the market exchange rate at year end and the forward rates KEFE °
stated in the contracts.

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23.FEfT R IE - IRE R EH A
RECEIVABLES FE UK 5% I8

At 31 December 2007, included in prepayments, deposits N_ZEZE+F+_HA=+—H -

and other receivables was an amount due from a jointly AR RIE - Re R HEMERKIE

controlled entity of approximately HK$120,000. At 31 PREKRKERAZEHEEZTAIRELD

December 2008, there was no amount due from a jointly 120,000/ L - RZZEZE )\ F + =

controlled entity that was included in prepayments, deposits A=+—8 BEHAXE R&£EkH

and other receivables. i FE W SR IE R B FE U FE R 4 I B 88
B R IE o

Annual Report 2008 3k 95



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

24. DUE FROM/(TO) AN ASSOCIATE

At 31 December 2007, the amounts due from/(to) an
associate was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed
repayment terms, except for an advance to the associate of
HK$1,000,000 which bore interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate plus 2% per annum.

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
AND CASH BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The deposits were denominated in HK$ and
arranged at floating interest rates ranging from 2.0% to
2.8% per annum (2007: 2.8% to 3.1% per annum) and
therefore are subject to cash flow interest rate risk.

Bank and cash balances amounted to approximately
HK$25,944,000 (2007: HK$12,770,000) were denominated
in RMB. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ /% JL
usD Ev
RMB AR
Others EAth

24. B PEAS B & N Bl R IB

25.

m:==t¢+—ﬂ*+—a i3
W, T EE & QR FRIEY & EEA -

%%Hﬁ%lmﬁfxﬂﬂ ME A B 2 A
A 1% # &9 & 71,000,000 7 Jt Bl &
FHRBEBRITRAEFRE S M2%T

B o
o

SR FRITHFRERT
&iﬁﬁ,%ﬁ%

AEEEEBRITFRIBEHNRIEE
Eﬁ‘%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁf31ﬁ%§$s€l&ﬁx
BROGEEMERTFTRITINER -
ZEGRAB T AERM - AFEF =X
20%E28% (T L F : 2.8%
E31%)MZFEHERF B - AKX
ZEEeRENERE -

IR 1T IR © 4 # 425,944,000% 7T
—ET L 12,770,000 T ) BA
ARBEEMN ARBEXBIINEF
FEINEEBIRGI RERE  EER
NEEEBREMRSG -

FIRBEESCEMENTYIE
BB B AL

2008 2007
—EENE —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FET
34,570 131,926
13,618 19,838
25,944 12,770
808 1,505

74,940 166,039

The bank and cash balances earned interest at floating
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.8% per annum
(2007: 0.3% to 3.4% per annum).

O6 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited = IzBIEZERER A

RITRIB S &G IUZE R R B FEF
RO01%E28%HEIMAB(ZEEE
+F  FHEK03% E3.4%) °



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TT \F+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

receipt of goods, is as follows:

0 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

T E30H
31HZ60H
61H£90H
91H £180H
180 H A

26. E 5 EH R IE

EoEMNZRERZKEBRFENE
ROMMWT

2008
—EENF

HK$°000
TET
26,826
16,343

7,180
1,306
1,651

53,306

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$

uSsD ETT
RMB AR #&
Others H

ESRNFBEBREABATINEE S
B

2008

=S 18-
HK$'000
S
6,206

6,483
39,126
1,491

53,306

Included in trade payables is an amount of approximately
HK$804,000 (2007: Nil) due to a jointly controlled entity.

27. DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

Particulars of the amount due to a related company are as
follows:

Chit Shun Machinery Limited

RAKWMBRBEERAT

BHRNRBARRENHARZENE
B8 498040008 T (=T F £ F:
®) o

27. BN BAE X B FIA

ENBEARRBEFBEAT :

2008

=S 1%
HK$’000
FHT
792
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZZ)N\F+_A=1+—ALFE

27.

28.

29.

98

DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY
(continued)

The amount due to a related company is unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand. Mr. Lee has significant
influence in the related company.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Short term bank loans (note 317)

Bank overdraft (note 31) RITBEX (M aE31)

RMHBRITER (K aE31)

27.

28.

FENEEQXTRE (%

(I

/

BNBEARNRELSELA 2
BRAEEREHNHER - FE4E
ERERRBEEATEN -

2 5 5 X

2008 2007

S IIVN -z 4+
HK$°000 HK$'000

F 87T FHTT
25,000 68,555

439 =

25,439 68,555

Short term bank loans were arranged at floating interest
rates ranging from 1.9% to 2.3% per annum (2007: 4.8%
to 5.4% per annum) and exposed the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Short term bank loans were secured by the
Group's fixed deposits, properties, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company (2007: the Group’s fixed deposits, properties,
corporate guarantees provided by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company, and personal guarantees
provided by Mr. Lee).

The carrying amounts of the short term bank loans are
denominated in HK$.

LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured bank loans (nhote 31)

Current portion of long term KB fE RAY
borrowings B EA B 15

29.

BEEMBITER(HE31)

RHETERNEZHFNNES R A
19%E23% (T F : FFIR
B48%ES5.4%) A & B A &
EReREMNERR - RHRTE
HAXEBHNEHER WERARN
AEIREETHERRIRENA A
EREABEB(ZZETLE : UK
SENTHER PE - -AREK
EETHBARRENRAGERK
THERENEARBRERER) -

RBRTEREEERETS
BAL o

2008 2007
IV -z =
HK$'000 HK$°000

F BT F&T
24,346 14,526
(9,263) (5,511)
15,083 9,015

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

EREBEBRERERLDA



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-TTN\F+-AZ+—ALFE

29. LONG TERM BORROWINGS (continued) 29. REAE R (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s long term borrowings
are denominated in HKS.

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year n

In the second year

In the third to fifth year,
inclusive

=

&

R

ERF

= SRES B RS 0 5 — 4
(BEERMAE)

REBRAEFREDERET A
B e

PAEHHERBMT

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
9,263 5,511

7,750 5,265

7,333 3,750

24,346 14,526

At 31 December 2008, long term borrowings were arranged
at floating interest rates ranging from 2.9% to 3.1% per
annum (2007: 5.0% to 5.6% per annum) and exposed the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Long term bank loans were secured by the Group’s fixed
deposits, properties, corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company (2007:
the Group’s fixed deposits, properties, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company and personal guarantees provided by Mr. Lee).

R=—FBAF+=-A=+—-8"
EHERXRNEZHFENEXRB2I9%ZE
3N1%(ZZEZEF : FMEB5.0%
E£56%) WASBEAXRERESR
= HMEERB -

EHRTERANEAEENEHF
K WE -ARAREETHBER
ARENAREFRERER(ZF
ZLF: UAKENEHREX D
X ARBETHEBRARREHRNORQ
AERRFEERHTNEAERE
RER) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows:

LR E MO RE

MEHOAENERRAWT :

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
EREEXN BEEERRE

2008

ZBEB)N\F

HK$'000

FHET

Within one year —&R 14,174

In the second to fifth year, £ _-ZFHF

inclusive (BHEERERE) 19,388
33,562

Less: Future finance lease W AKEE

charges ik ol (1,633)

Present value of lease HHOAERE
obligations 31,929
Less: Amount due for o 1218 A A3 A
settlement within 12 EHERIA
months (shown under (B B mE
current liabilities) BE)

Amount due for settlement 12 & A 14 %I &8
after 12 months 4 E HIE

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and
machinery and motor vehicles under finance leases. The
average lease term is 3 to 5 years.

At 31 December 2008, leases of approximately HK$575,000
(2007: HK$133,000) were arranged at fixed interests rates
and exposed the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
remaining borrowings were arranged at floating rates, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

100 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ~EZIxEIFRIZERER AT

2007 2008 2007

“ETLF Ll T F
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000

F57z QT THE  FiET
7,166 13,207 6,641

4,658 18,722 4,485

11,824 31,929

(698) N/A

11,126 31,929

(13,207)

18,722

AEENBREAREERN XA
ERETHREREBRAE  F1HHE
EFHR3IESEF -

R_ZEENF+_/A=+—8 "
#9575,000 % T ( = T T + F :
133,000 7t ) B9 18 49 1% [& & ) & 5+
B AREERBAEANFEMNEER
Br o EM{ERIZZEFERFTBE © W
AEFEEAERSTEANEEAR -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\FE+_A=1+—ALEFE

30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

31.

(continued)

The interest rates are analysed as follows:

& 7 F & 49
FEBANEBEL

Fixed rate leases
Floating rate leases

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

All obligations under finance leases are denominated in HKS.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had available banking
facilities of approximately HK$269 million (2007: HK$242
million), which were utilised to the extent of HK$67 million
(2007: HK$87 million). These banking facilities were secured
by the following:

(@) corporate guarantees provided by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company;

(b) the Group's bank deposits of approximately of HK$4
million (2007: HK$6 million);

() a property situated in Hong Kong owned by the
Group; and

(d) lessors’ title to the leased assets under finance leases.

At 31 December 2007, personal guarantees were provided

by Mr. Lee to three banks and subsequently all the personal
guarantees had been released as at 31 December 2008.

30.

31.

RmEMENEE (&)

MESHAOT :
2008 2007
—EENHF —EELF

4.8% to 9.9%
2.8% to 7.0%

4.8% to 7.5%
5.3% to 7.4%

EHENYABEEERXN AL &
STERIRAE S LB -

EHMBMEBROAEYANBITTE -

AEENRMEBLOAZALEAD
HEEEMBRIERER -

== £

RITEE

R—_ZEZENE+_A=+—8"
AEEBUHAMNETEELN A
269,000,000 B T ( Z T & + F :
242,000,000 7T ) + M E &) A 8 &
% #4) 567,000,000 T(ZEZE +
4 : 87,000,000 7T ) ° It F R 1T
SELT3IEBEREM :

(@) ARARARBXLNER
ARM D AER

by X & B M & 17 F X 4
4,000,000 Bt (ZZEZE L F :
6,000,000 7T )

(0 AKBREAENH-—BEEME
K

d HHAZEBEREEOLED
BEMARE-

RZEBEZLF+_A=+—H " H
ZHEAMZKEITRME ZMEAER
ER-ZEENFE+-_A=+—RH%
SEEBR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_TT) \F+-A=+—HILFE

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised by the Group, and the movements thereon,
during the year:

R.EEHREERF

ATRAEERFACHERNEE
ELEREBEEEREERRABEES -

Accelerated tax
depreciation

bn 2R B 0E 4 B
HK$000
FET
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 and R—ZZEZtLtF—-—H—H"
1 January 2008 —EZLEE+ZA=+T—HEK
—EEZNF-—H—H 1,128
Charge to income statement for BFABRRNR
the year (note 9) (K1zE9) 480
At 31 December 2008 R-ZFBENF+=_A=+—H 1,608

At 31 December 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$9,600,000 (2007: Nil) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these tax losses (2007: Nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

102 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ~ Z BB IER G R 2 &

R—TEENE+=_BA=+—8 K&
2 A B)F FIEE B 4 59,600,000 %
T(ZE2EELF: E)AHEHEBERKRZ
St F) o m R Ak BE BRI R R B9SE B 0 M
—EELF E)RUEREEERR
BELEMEEE - ﬁl%Tuﬁﬁ$Xm
FlmeE TEREBBIIERALEE -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE—

ZZN\F+_A=1+—RHLFE

33. SHARE CAPITAL

33. R &

Number of
shares Amount
&% & B ]
Note HK$'000
B i FE T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each &R EE0.1/8 L H) L&
At 1 January 2007 RZFEZE+F—H— EI 1,000,000 100
Increased on 31 May 2007 RZEELHF
BAAE=+—H#FHWEIE A (a@)@i) 4,999,000,000 499,900
At 31 December 2007 and RZZEZTLF
31 December 2008 TZA=+—B R
—ZEENF+=ZRAR=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each &R E (E0.178 T & 8 K&
At 1 January 2007 RZZTEZE+F—H—H 1 =
Issue of shares as consideration & 17 % 19 {E & & &
for the transfer of entire NS =
shareholdings of a subsidiary R E (a)(ii) 99,999,999 10,000
Issue of shares by way of 7 i@ 10 % B IR
capitalisation of share &A1t
premium account BIIRG (a)(ii) 560,000,000 56,000
Issue of shares by way of placing & i@ i & &
and public offer NRAZEEETRG (b) 220,000,000 22,000
At 31 December 2007 and RZEBET+F
31 December 2008 TZA=t+—B XK
—EENF+ZRAR=+—H 880,000,000 88,000
Note: Ht et

(a)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the Company’s

shareholders on 31 May 2007:

(i) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$100,000 to HK$500,000,000 by the creation of
additional 4,999,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each;

(i) 99,999,999 shares of HK$0.1 each was issued on 31 May
2007 in exchange for the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui
(Holdings) Company Limited (“Ka Shui BVI”), a subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the

Stock Exchange; and

BRI AR DR R R

R-FELFRA

ST HBANEERSER

(1)

(i)

% 3B ¥ 4,999,000,000 A%
SREEBEOIBITERGD A2
AR E M A E 100,000 8 T
2% 500,000,000 & 7T ¢

BIEEATEABLEARERSE
BHRmAKRR T RD R
FIRETELER  ARFR
— T+ ER A=+ —BE
99,999,999 IR HF R EE 0.1
7S TCAR D AR ER AR A B B B A
AlEmhElE (k) BRAF
# (IKa ShuiBVI]) & ¥ &
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

104

Note: (continued)

(iii) a total of 560,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were allotted
and issued as fully paid at par to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on 12
June 2007, in proportion to their shareholdings, by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$56,000,000 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company,
conditional on the share premium account being credited
as a result of new shares issued by way of placing and
public offer on 25 June 2007.

(b) On 25 June 2007, 220,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were
issued at HK$1.35 each to the public by way of placing and
public offer for a total of cash consideration, before related
expenses, of HK$297,000,000. The excess over the par value of
the shares issued was credited to the share premium account.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained earnings. The directors of the Company review the
capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group has
a target gearing ratio of not more than 30% determined as
the proportion of net debt to equity.

EWEBEBRERERDA

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

33. A (4B)

fat - (&)

(ifi) FEBA D F KD E R
BR 56,000,000 ;8 7T #& & &
ZL< BBERENERS U

ER AR A IZEERZ R
77 560,000,000 A% & A% @ &
0.1 BT F T LF X
A+_RA4%£BERFETIAK
AAREZMOARRRKRE -
RN EERER_TZTLF
NA-ZTHRBEERAMAEE
BITHRG MEALR -

(b)) R-ZZEZTLEXA-_T+EA BB
BEERAREE 220,000,000 %
SREEONBITRMHETR 1.35
BITHERBRETTAR  £FE&K
f&/4 297,000,000 BT (MNEREHA
XA - BHEBERITRMHEESHD
FEARG HEER

AEEEREEERNAERASE K
ARELE MEOKETATEEE
LEBEEREHRIERAE R -
AEEMNEBRBELXFRER -

AEENEARBBERELER
REeHEBRAQRERFTAE AEN
Bwm o PREBITRA - #FHEER
BEAF ARNAEEFFFRT—
RERERE -RETHRIR EZF
EEEAKRAREBESEELANE
“°$ETF%$E’JE  AEEBE
FEDITENE & ﬁ%ﬁﬂx&%@ﬂxfﬁ
LA K B 'T%ﬂ T8 8 fE [0 3R A (&
FEUNTFEEREERNERE - ZFEIE’J
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

33. A (48)

REKHNEABBLERNT ¢

Debt (a) 8 & (a)

Less: Bank and cash balances o R1T MR & A
Net debt BEFH

Equity (b) # 7 (b)

Net debt to equity ratio B FREEED X

2008 2007
—EENE — T F
HK$’000 HK$'000

F & T FE T
81,714 94,207
(74,940) (94,207)
6,774 =
539,640 519,563

0.01 =

(@) Debt is defined as short term and long term
borrowings and obligations under finance leases, as
detailed in notes 28, 29 and 30.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(@) Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(a) BEXEDNREAEEEERRBSME
XM EAMRYEE BB
SE A FE28 - 29 %30 °

\

by BEERAKTEMRBEEAR
ff

%E

o

AEBARBFERBRZ EHit
NME—MmINEKEZEARABRERES
NEFEREHERABRNDEL25% °

4. % 1B

AEENRERALBEESH IR
RABSEHREY -

(a) K1 E R

B aEhEREZEaRS R
ETEE’]TT%?&?‘THXT%WEE
MEE BERSHE QA
o ARAHRMDEEERRN
B2 A Dk TARA DR
R EEBEREEZEDEZ
EH%: KNAREHBENEERE

BEBKEBEREPIHBAEAN
%i"%"
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34. RESERVES (continued)

106

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregate of (i) the
nominal value of the shares issued by Ka Fung Metal
on 18 January 2005 in exchange for the business of Ka
Fung Metal Manufactory, an unincorporated
partnership established in Hong Kong and controlled
by Mr. Lee; (ii) the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange for the entire
shareholdings of Ka Shui BVI.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of minority
interests in Ka Fung Metal and Ka Fung Metal
Manufactory acquired by the Group.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion of any
foreign exchange differences arising from hedges of
the net investment in these foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 3(e)(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 3(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC statutory
reserve fund which is non-distributable.

EREBEBRERERLDA
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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I A2 AR ) 2 F S g
THRMDEE: R)A&A R F
/& # HiKa Shui BVIH) & B A%
EMBETHROEE -

EXfEE

EXAHEEAEEKEZ
cEBhREcBHRMRD
PREREE KR o

~ O

2

BE % {18

ELimEERREBRESRI
XU BBRRBEELENTEA
EXEBRYPBINZEBR
EFREREENEMNELE
BOEUHD ZFERER
B &R A B % R MY 5E3(e)ii)
FIRgst R E -

BRERE

BRERBERBERATHK
BERMEIOMBRBREEE
BA B £ 32 5 9 5R0IR T AR 4 1Y
EHBRRERNBETAKH
BENATHEBERENER
KA EBENATEE-

EE A

AERBERETADIKS T
BEAERBEES -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n/ \ IZI /\ﬁj{"%i&%MT

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(f)

Statutory reserve (continued)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation calculated under PRC
accounting rules and regulations to the statutory
reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the
statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of their registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used
to make up prior year losses or applied in conversion
into capital.

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

(@)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants include the
employees of the Group and executive directors of the
Company. Share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were granted to 59 grantees on 1 June
2007. The exercise of these share options would entitle
these grantees to an aggregate of 22,000,000 shares.

Bt

4. 1%k (%8)

(f)

EEME (E)

TEAEIIBERELXENE
EARRKEARE  ARQA

B BB A E A BARE S
Bl & 510K B & R 01 5t F 89 B
o1& g FI10%HE B EEE
HEEEL HERFTEATEM

BESAEABEIFMELRD
50% &1l AERGHEE

CARAKRERBEFERBIR
HBEABR o

5. URELEE 2 F1E

LR 0 X Y 2 B8 IR #E =T &

(a)

BRAFERIEREZ
NN AR ERA SRR
EREAES(TBEA2HAER
AR ESE ) EMER
MEAEBERDEEELE
BHmAERLEEIRERE
FER - AERK2HEERRE
AEBEEBERADRATE
£ o HXAFE KA E K E
FETHEREERZ=-ZE
+E XA — HBHE TS5 EFR
A o HE IR AT I & BB AR 4
#% 7] % & ££22,000,000 A% A%
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

5. UREEE 2K IE (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) B XA GERKFE K #EZ 23
(&)
Details of the specific categories of options are as BN R EREEBOT
follows:
Number of share
Category of Exercise options
grantee Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price outstanding
ABEAER BEAH BERH T8 TEE HBBREHA
HK$
BT
Executive directors 1 June 2007 27 June 2008 27 June 2008 to 0.81 1,452,000
HITES —TTLF —ZT)N\HF 26 June 2011
~NA—H ANEZTtH ZEZNF
ANAZ+tBRZE
=5
NAZ+B
Executive directors 1 June 2007 27 June 2009 27 June 2009 to 0.81 1,452,000
HITES —TTLHF —ZTNEF 26 June 2011
~NA—H ~AA=Zt+tB ZZEThF
ANAZ+tBRZE
=50
NAZ+XH
Executive directors 1 June 2007 27 June 2010 27 June 2010 to 0.81 1,936,000
HITES —TTLHF —ZT-TF 26 June 2011
~NA—H ~AA=ZttH Z—ZE-—ZTF
ANAZ+tBRZE
—E2——fF
NAZ+H
Employees 1 June 2007 27 June 2008 27 June 2008 to 0.81 4,521,000
EE& —TTLF —ZT)N\HF 26 June 2011
~NH—H ANEZTtH Z—ZEZNF
ANAZ+tBRZE
=50
NAZ+H
Employees 1 June 2007 27 June 2009 27 June 2009 to 0.81 4,521,000
E& —ZTTtHF —ZTNEF 26 June 2011
~NA—H ~AA=ZttB ZZEThF
ANAZ+tBR=ZE
=h==tE
NAZ+H
Employees 1 June 2007 27 June 2010 27 June 2010 to 0.81 6,028,000
E& —ZTTtHF —ZT-TF 26 June 2011
~NA—H ~AA=ZttH Z—ZZE—ZF
ANAZ+tBRZE
—E——fF
NAZ+H
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 5. IR ELEE 2 IE (&)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) UMz EREsE (8)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) B XA FE IR AT SR # a2

(#%&)

The share options (to the extent not already exercised) HMARTEOBRESRER

shall lapse at the expiry of the option period on 26 REMHAERB(ZT——%F

June 2011 or otherwise in the following manner: NAZHARB)SHAU TR

HRK

(i)  the share option shall lapse automatically upon iy BEREAEEAZTHE
the death of the grantee; EEES

(i) the share options (to the extent not already (i) & K17 {F Ay BE P 4 R &
exercised) shall lapse automatically on the last BAEBAEBN&E
date of the grantee’'s employment with the —BE®HLAL mTWH
Group, no matter how the cessation of A E MR E L IER’EA
employment arises; and %

(iii) if the grantee breaches any term or condition of (i) MEARAEREBEBR
the share options as described in the offer letter TEE 4 5 P EES AR M
in relation thereto, the options (to the extent not SR AR (- == (= B S
already exercised) shall lapse automatically (unless TENERE=2 38K
otherwise directed by the Board of Directors in o EEFTEUAEAE
writing in its absolute discretion). ANEEBERITERSE

BIBR AN ©
During the year, no share options were granted under FRN BERBEEAAAE
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. AR ATEE IR AT Bl R B E A A

L B P #E -

The fair values of the options determined at the dates RELBBERRB DR — &
of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model RMATHEETEEXAETNRE
were HK$0.55, HK$0.59, HK$0.61 and HK$0.63 R #E A FEED B A0.558 T ¢
respectively. 0.597% 7T ~ 0.618 7T & 0.63 &
T o

The following assumptions were used to calculate the THRBARSTEBRED
fair values of shares options: F1E

Exercise price HK$0.81 TIEE 0.81% T
Expected life 2.5-3.5 years TE & HA 2.5-3.54F
Expected volatility 46.94% T8 &% 18 46.94%
Dividend yield 1.70% % 8 B ) & 1.70%
Risk-free interest rate 4.38% = 3 b A & 4.38%
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to written resolutions of all the shareholders
passed on 2 June 2007, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was approved. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that eligible
participants had made or may make to the Group.
Eligible participants include (i) employees, directors,
consultants, professionals, customers, suppliers,
agents, partners or advisors of or contractors to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an
interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”),
or (ii) companies beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 2 June 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years

from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme or any other schemes involving the
grant of options over shares of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at anytime. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12
month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at anytime. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

110 Ka Shui International Holdings Limited ~ Z BB IER G R 2 &
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain open
for acceptance by the eligible participant concerned for
a period of not less than three business days from the
date of offer, except for any offer which is made
within the last three business days of the life of this
scheme, the offer shall remain open for acceptance on
a business day by the eligible participant concerned for
a period of not longer than the remaining life of this
scheme. An offer cannot be accepted by a participant
who ceases to qualify as an eligible participant after
the offer has been made. No offer shall be capable of
or open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years for
the effective date of this scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$10 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period as
determined by directors at each grant and ends on a
date which is not later than ten years from the date of
the offer of the share options.

5. IR EEE ZF

18 (48 )

LR 13 3 4 2 B B R B (48)

(b)

FEIREEE 2 (&)
MARRESE  THERK
FTERFERBEESENEM
AR EERE  BAfF
BUFBTESSEEMER
F A #EAT o A R EM T
“EARHEARARREE
RN BILIFNITTE B RE
£ 1) (T ] B %Ai&%mﬁ
AEKRE WERALKXAD
%E%ﬁ%@mm%ﬁ%ﬁ
(EREBHAQABRMD YT
fZ 5t &) &8 #B5,000,000 /& 7T
L O BEBRERBREAS b
R AT T o
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HHEF TP R=ZE%XH
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

(b)

112

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date
of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Share options under the Share Option Scheme were
granted to 212 grantees (2007: Nil) on 13 March
2008. The exercise of these share options would entitle
these grantees to an aggregate of 20,102,000 shares
(2007: Nil).

EWEBEBRERERDA
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

5. R EEE 2 XK

H(£&)

DURH XS zBRES S (F)

(b)

Details of the specific categories of options are as

follows:
Category of
grantee Date of grant Vesting date
AR ANE BEHBAH BEAH
Executive directors 13 March 13 March
WiTES 2008 2009
—TENF —ETNF
EATEE =A+=R
Executive directors 13 March 13 March
WITES 2008 2010
—ZT)NE —T-TF
=A+=H =A+=R
Executive directors 13 March 13 March
HITES 2008 2011
—TENEF —T——fF
= Fr=E EHTFEE
Employees 13 March 13 March
EE 2008 2009
—TENF —TENF
=A+=AH =A+=H
Employees 13 March 13 March
{=3=1 2008 2010
—TENF —ET-ZF
EATEE =A+=R
Employees 13 March 13 March
E& 2008 2011
—ZT)NE —T——%f
=A+=H =A+=RH

Exercise period

TEH

13 March 2009 to
12 March
2018
—TTNEF
EHAT=ZEZE
—T-N\F
—A+—-H
13 March 2010 to
12 March
2018
—E-%F
=A+=RZ%
—ZT-N\F
=At+Z=H
13 March 2011 to
12 March
2018
—T——%F
=A+=BZE
—ZE-N\#F
=A+=H
13 March 2009 to
12 March
2018
—TTNE
ERTF=EEZE
—T-N\F
=A+=H
13 March 2010 to
12 March
2018
—E-%F
EHAT=ZEZE
—T-N\F
—A+=-H
13 March 2011 to
12 March
2018
—E——F
=A+=RZE
—ZET-N\F
=At+Z=H

BT E (A

BRENABERFE

Exercise
price
THEE
HK$
BT
0.415

0.415

0.415

0.415

0.415

0.415

&)

Number of share
options
outstanding

i R IE IR B BB

1,132,000

849,000

849,000

5,584,000

4,188,000

4,188,000
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)
The fair values of the options determined at the dates
of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
were HK$0.11, HK$0.12 and HK$0.13 respectively.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of shares options:

Exercise price
Expected life
Expected volatility
Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

HK$0.415
3.5-6.5 years

55.42%
5.25%

2.005%—-2.176%

Details of the share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme during the

year are as follows:

Outstanding at the FHPRITE
beginning of the year

Granted during the year  F R & &

Forfeited during the year  £E A8 I

Outstanding at the end FRRATIE
of the year

Exercisable at the end FRAITE

of the year

35. AR EAEE 2 K

5 (%)

=

DURH XN zBRES S (F)

(b)

BRREE ()
RIBEEHBEBERBRRA DR — &
MU EETEEAETHRE
BEAFED R AZ011BTT -
0.12% 7T ~ 0.13 T °

51 62 3 0 B B 9 R
{8 :

1T1EE 0.4157% 7T
T8 5T F 3 3.5-6.54
T8 51 % 18 55.42%
% B 3] 3 =& 5.25%

MEE AR 2.005%-2.176%

FARKRITENERAFEBRAE
BERBRESBOT

2008
—2FN\F

Number of
share
options

B R

g H

21,120,000
20,102,000
(4,522,000)

36,700,000

5,973,000

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of share prices of comparable companies
with shares listed on the Stock Exchange and engaged in the
similar business of the Group. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on the Group’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural considerations.
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—ETLHF
Weighted Weighted
Vel Number of average
exercise share exercise
price options price
n#EFE HE A 1 hn#E ¥ 19
TEE B TEE
HK$ HK$
E T BT
0.81 - N/ATEA
RS 22,000,000 0.81
0.521 (880,000) 0.81
(CyAsll 21,120,000 0.81
0.81 - N/ATEA
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A HmERMNEE @

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE-TENET=A=+—BILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 5. URELEE 2 RIE (&F)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) URMGXA2ERESTE (E)
The fair value of the options will be amortised over the BREAFEBUNESE T ARE
vesting period on a straight-line basis and expensed in the BEHA#HSE THREBEZEXANIE
income statement. T e
No share option had been exercised during the year (2007: FRABEBEREETFE(ZZEZE+
Nil). The options outstanding at the end of the year have a F o) FRARTHEBEREN N
weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.6 years EITARBREHNFHRSE6F (ZF
(2007: 3.5 years). T F :35F)
Save as disclosed above, no further options were granted Br EXFTHEEN  MERESX
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option NFAERATEERR R & & BT
Scheme. S| $% A ] B B AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36. 4B £ h8 XM=

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

EREBEBRERERLDA

STATEMENT
(a) Cash flow from operating activities (a) REEXEKFBEERE
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Profit from operations 7% 25 T 24,571 77,401
Adjustments for: EEHTHAR :
Interest income FEMA (2,661) (4,602)
Bad debts written off 2 8K 3 867 =
Allowance for doubtful debt RIER AR 224 803
Allowance for inventories FERE 1,108 534
Loss/(gain) on financial assets at BRAFEFABRR
fair value through profit or loss MeMmEEEBR/
(fez=) (3,862)
Equity-settled share-based payments LA fi% 12 4% & LA B% 17
X E A 4,327
Listing expenses i3 2,161
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME HEREREZ
plant and equipment B/ (k=) 74 (101)
Depreciation on property, EIN T
plant and equipment BETE 32,507 22,642
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BNLA e
payments # pI:] 260
Operating profit before movements ~ K4 EES EFHA W
in working capital 48 F 64,578 99,563
Increase in inventories F&E#En (1,694) (30,674)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 g We X IE R/ 4/ (3 4n) 21,867 (3,856)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BT FE - K4 R H M
deposits and other receivables FEW K IR A/ (32 m) 2,136 (7,137)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables 2 5 2B O 4 ) /0 (13,060) 6,543
(Decrease)/increase in deposits BElize  HMEMHKER
received, other payables Est & H
and accruals CR ) /m (4,961) 814
Decrease in due to an associate JE 17 Bk 8 X Bl IR = (57)
(Decrease)/increase in due to related  JE B & A 7 ZIB
companies CR )/ #m (14) 537
Increase in due to a director JE 1~ 25 S5 ZRIR 38 N - 904
Cash generated from operations KEMBHRE 68,852 66,637
Income tax paid EER (12,520) (11,538)
Interest paid 2 F 8 (1,333) (4,875)
Finance lease charges paid ENBMERNZH (1,116) (1,120)
Net cash generated from LTS
operating activities b 53,883 49,104
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW 3. B £ Hh 8 & M =
STATEMENT (continued) (%)

Ne=x

(b) WEEHIE 2 F

FRAQRZHFA —FEHKH
B A AlKa Shui BVIEE k # 2
BTITHRRITIZLEEHE B
Itk Ka Shui BVIFE & U & x 4
#% T Z260%#E - ReRE
491,797,000 T WEE K =
EENF—HAH—BRBER-

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary

During the year, one of the subsidiaries of the
Company, Ka Shui BVI entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with the remaining shareholders
of Wing Yu, pursuant to which Ka Shui BVI agreed to
acquire the remaining equity interest of 60% in Wing
Yu for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$1,797,000. The acquisition was effective on 1
January 2008.

R R HE BB K® A&
NEERBEBEZAFERER
FHEYEERNZH HEHE

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Wing Yu acquired as at its date of acquisition, which
has no significant difference from its carrying amount,

is as follows: B R
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: BERBIFEE :
Property, plant and equipment M HERERE 9,876
Inventories FE 6,186
Trade receivables 2 5 EWHIE 4,912
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8t 318 « 124 & H i fE Y 3% 18 1,326
Due from a shareholder i s % 3R k1B 4,246
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER 1,069
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS &8 957
Trade payables B 5 .1 5E (4,985)
Deposits received BlEe (90)
Other payables and accruals Hth 518 K BT & (3,974)
Due to a shareholder J& {5 A% 3R 5K IR (14,335)
Short term borrowings SR (1,455)
Obligations under finance leases A& A AE (110)
Bank overdraft RITE L (711)
2,912
Share of net assets in previous year BENEFEEFEE (1,115)
Satisfied by: AR5 75 S E T -
Cash 4 1,797
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEAZRESRE F5
Cash consideration paid ENBREeRE 1,797
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERERERERRELER (246)
1,551
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36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

118

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

(c)

Wing Yu contributed approximately HK$12,469,000 to
the Group’s turnover and decreased the Group’s profit
after tax by approximately HK$9,976,000 for the
period between the date of acquisition and the
balance sheet date.

Major non-cash transaction

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

During the year, the Group had entered into
finance leases in respect of property, plant and
equipment with total capital values at the
inception of the leases of approximately
HK$35,448,000 (2007: HK$9,143,000).

Included in the addition of property, plant and
equipment was an amount of approximately
HK$1,990,000 (2007: HK$6,940,000) which was
transferred from deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments.

At 31 December 2007, included in the addition
of prepaid land lease payments was an amount
of approximately HK$15,515,000 which was
transferred from deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payments.

During the year, prepayments to financial
institution of approximately HK$648,000 were set
off against the obligations under finance leases.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group sold property, plant and equipment to a
jointly controlled entity at a consideration of
approximately HK$120,000.

EREBEBRERERLDA

6.5 5l & R E KR M 5E
(&)

l‘/ ~

(b) WEMEBAR (8)

XM HBKERBEEELEA
ZHBEHAERZEERH
B Bt 4 A12,469,000 & T -
I A = G -7 B [
9,976,000 7T °

(Q)

FEFBRESXRSH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FR - AEERDE -
MeEREZBIT LR E M
Y RITVBEHEZE
7N 48 B #) A 35,448,000
B Z T Z £ F
9,143,000/ 7T ) °

FARBEME BBER
& 5 #9 41,990,000 7 JT
ZZTZT +F 6,940,000
B) o DREEBYE -
MR ERERENLTM
HeEzReEMEA -

R—ZZEZE+HF+ = A
=+t—H HFABML
# M £ 4 %A15,515,000
/%E’EEEE\HE%A%
¥ KEIEXBERER
THHASZIEESEA

FARBENKREFER
i 49648,0005% JT & B
B E T4 AE IR Y o

BE_Z2FT+F+ = A
= t+t—BLFEE &Xx&
EREREFEELE
k- BEBEREZE K
B 49120,00078 7T °



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

nv.

A mERNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE=

37.

38.

2E\FH-A=t—ALEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

7. &EHNEE

AEBEREHEA

R-FEFENF+-_A=+—8" $
SERETATRELEHO MR

51| #1 A |JHHH]*IF{EE$EEFA£@\%E\
LU

2008 2007

—BEBN\F “ETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 2,014 883
In the second to fifth year, inclusive £ - ZFAF (BEEEREF) 6,620 3,418
After five years HFig 42,619 40,695
51,253 44,996

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its staff quarter, warehouse and
leasehold land for factory. Leases for staff quarter and
warehouse are negotiated, and rentals are fixed, for an
average term of 1 to 2 years. Lease for leasehold land are
fixed with a term of 40 years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments in respect of purchase and
construction of property, plant and equipment at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

BRI ERE®E

Contracted but not provided for

38.

KEHANRTIERASEESRE TE
IEEe EaMIHEAE L
WEE BEIEEREEMNBALOL
Emsly HeABETEmHELF
HEI1E2F - HE T MELOH
ERFHRBA40F

B EE

REZER ASEERBENRESE
ME HBERRENERNEAEFB

LR
2008 2007
= s %A —ETLR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FHET
19,653 29,827
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. AEANERZ

B 70 B %5 R 2k H b 8B 10 AT I
BENHEEALRZ RERI
FRARNEELEBEALE

(@) In addition to those related party translations and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions

(a)

120

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

with its related parties during the year:

TATRS :

2008 2007
—BENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Purchase of raw material from MEREHEEHEE
a jointly controlled entity JR M & 1,805 -
Sale of property, plant and mMARZES EELE
equipment to a jointly Mz - #eEE R
controlled entity B 120
Purchase of machinery from EEE S =N - T
an investee company (note (i) (HfaZ ) 11,364 -
Purchase of machinery, machinery [a] B4 8 2 & 5 50 # W 3% &
parts and maintenance cost BRAAIEE#SE
from a related company, Chit HRET IR
Shun Machinery Limited HAE PR
(note (i) (B &£ (i) ) 2,275
Deposits paid to a related EREREWNGIE R T
company, Chit Shun Machinery BRABRIZNES
Limited (note 19) (Kia£19) 3,556
Subcontracting charges paid to B RNEIER]
an associate DBBE 26,685
Advance from Mr. Lee TR AERBEBRK 21,810
Advance from a jointly controlled  #t [/ 3% % & 52
entity R’ B ;R °
Management fee income from A B & X &) HER
an associate EEE 156
Advance to Mr. Lee M 2= Sp £ AR 22,870
Advance to an associate ER:R=WNCIE- N 6,600
Interest income from an B RENCIE )
associate A E 89
Notes: B &t -

(i) The investment in the investee company is classified as

available-for-sale financial assets.

(if)

Mr. Lee has significant influence in the related company.

EREBEBRERERLDA

(i)
AHHESREE -

(i)
g7

HEBREBERRAZRERD RS

FEEHUBERRBEAY



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) The above transactions were entered into with the
related parties on terms mutually agreed by individual
parties. In the opinion of the directors of the Group,
these related party transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group’s business.

() During the year, the key management personnel

compensation paid by the Group was disclosed in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008 are as

39.BEALTRZ (B)

by EixXxHEEEALTZR
B EMEWERGEREST -
AEEEERR ZSME
RepDHBRE-—RAXZHERR
AEEAEEGBREDET -

€0 FR -AEBERMNEEER
AEBME DR EETBHHRE
11 E -

40. B N Al 18

R-BENFE+-A=+—8 K
BARAHENT :

Percentage of
ownership interest/

follows:
Issued and fully
Place and date of paid up share capital/
incorporation registered capital
Name o 0 B 3L 3t B BRTRAR
£8 kBH kA /GZRER
Ka Shui BVI British Virgin 369,093 ordinary shares of
Islands (“BVI") USDO.1 each
RERAES 369,093/ B R E E
(REEXHS]) 0IEZTHLAER
Ka Fung Metal Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
FEcE Bt HK$1 each
10,000 % & iR &
178 i & R
Ka Shui HK Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of
Eina b B HK$100 each
100 &R EE 1008 T
i & B K
MG Technology The PRC Registered capital
AleEME i HK$150,000,000*
BRIE-EN

150,000,000 T, *

voting power/
profit sharing
EihER
RER/BIEIN
Direct Indirect

EE el &
100% -

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding
RERK

Manufacture of zinc alloy
die casting products and
components

EEHCERBEMK
25

Sale of zinc, magnesium and
aluminium alloy die casting
products and components

HEH BRBEATER
EmRkTHH

Sale and manufacture of zinc,
magnesium and aluminium
alloy die casting products
and components

EERHEH BER#EEE
BREmRTHMHE
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

40. B R R 15 (&)

Percentage of

Issued and fully

ownership interest/

Place and date of  paid up share capital/ voting power/profit
incorporation registered capital sharing
Name T AR Lt 5 ERARME EfER Principal activities
£ RBH# RE/EMER RER/ENEAL  TEER
Direct Indirect
ER [}
Ka Shui (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Not yet commenced business
= (EM) e HK$110,000,000%* WARKEE
& £110,000,0007% 7z **
Elegant Shine Investments BVI 1 ordinary share of = 100% Inactive
Limited AERAES USD1 each TEZH
EEREARAA I1REEIZTHERR
Ka Shui Technology Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Investment holding
Limited Bt HK$1 each RERR
ERMRERAA 10,000 B REAE BT
Wing Yu Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of surface finishing
K 3G of HK$1 each treatment services
100,000 % SR AE 1% T RO R R ER%
8RR
Ka Yi (Huizhou) The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Not yet commenced business
EE(EM) e HK$20,000,000%** WARREE
# fff & 420,000,000 % 7t ***
Ka May Metal Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of = 100%  Inactive
Manufactory Company E& HK$1 each EEEK
Limited "REREEIBTHE AR
EXCEARARAA
4 As at 31 December 2008, only approximately HK$112,120,000 * RZTZENF+=ZA=+—8"
had been paid up. A A #112,120,00058 7T E & fF -
**  As at 31 December 2008, only HK$100,000,000 had been paid * RZTETNF+ZA=+—H" R

up.

* Kk

122

As at 31 December 2008, only HK$4,000,000 had been paid up.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

* % Kk

EREBEBRERERLDA

/100,000,000 7T 2 T °

R-—TENE+=A=+—8"

& 4,000,000 7T E BT °

N
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

MG Technology, Ka Shui (Huizhou) and Ka Yi (Huizhou) are
wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

41. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant events have been taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2008:

(@) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group sold
leasehold land and buildings at a total consideration of
HK$4.9 million and the charge on the assets will be
released.

(b)  On 17 April 2009, the Company proposed to declare a
final dividend of HK$0.006 per ordinary share to its
shareholders, as further detailed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 17 April 2009.

40.

41.

42.

MEARFRE (&)

BleEXME - BEh(EN REE
(BM) B REFBKLNINE S
B -

HEBRER

R=BBAE+=A=+—HEHR
FEMERFEMT -

(a) REHLEBH®EB ZXEBUER
f£4,900,000% T & H H & +
WhkEF BBz EEKF

12 B b o
by RZZEZTALFWMA++LAH"
AR alE#HEIRSRK0.006E
TTZRHEBERKRE  HF
BENRGEAEMEHRRMEI2 -
He O B 1% #R 3R

AMBBREER_ZEZANFHEA+
tREEE=SHEL RETZE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

VKT }b h
BTS2
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=+—-HLFE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTTNE —ZTTREF —ZETRE —TTLEF ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TFET FET BT FE T FET
RESULTS ES
Turnover % 375,691 348,377 645,588 752,749 685,134
Profit before tax B %4 A i 60,745 15,111 122,759 67,724 14,527
Income tax expense FrEfHmx (6,135) (2,001) (11,339) (10,179) (5,892)
Profit for the year F Wi Fl 54,610 13,110 111,420 57,545 8,635
Attributable to AT ATEERES :
— Equity holders of S WNGIE:
the Company EEA 53,662 13,031 109,562 57,492
- Minority interests -LEREERA 948 79 1,858 53
54,610 13,110 111,420 57,545
As at 31 December
W+=HA=+-H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTmE —ZTRE —ZTRE —ETAE —E2EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK3$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
ASSETS AND EERAR
LIABILITIES
Total assets EERE 225,961 296,948 422,109 718,396 710,285
Total liabilities BEBE (117,848) (174,986) (203,739) (198,833) (170,645)
Net assets BEEFE 108,113 121,962 218,370 519,563 539,640

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2006 are extracted from the
Company’s prospectus dated 12 June 2007 which have been
prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group
as if the group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, had
been in existence throughout those years.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited

EREBEBRERERLDA

BHE-_ZTEAF+_A=+—HIL=F
EEMNEBENEERBEREDHEA RN
REANR_FZELEFENAT_HHNBEE
B OCREHEERHRUBTRIASEERN
B (BREA2ANBODERTEBR AR
SHERAR LTRNEBERBEZS
FE—EFE) -



Ka Shui International Holdings Limited
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ELEBRERERA T

Room 1210, Exchange Tower, 33 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel E5E: (852) 2414 0456

Fax & (852) 2412 1743
website #811F : www.kashui.com
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